

Early History of Jamestown  
1812 -

(Foot's papers)

5097

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

The land on the North side of the outlet on two articles for the land south of the outlet - The contracts were made the 22<sup>nd</sup> day of September 1822 - I have the old cancelled contracts for the Batavia office and the correspondence between me and Mr Burt.

I am perfectly satisfied if I had not applied to Mr Burt we had now Elliott still held the office at Batavia. I should not have obtained the land, but it could <sup>have been</sup> much larger removed <sup>west part of</sup> <sup>east part of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>lot</sup> <sup>25</sup> and <sup>26</sup> town 2 Range 11 of the

N<sup>th</sup> Corp Survey - The line between my purchase and Judge Ringdaster's land was the <sup>N<sup>th</sup> 3</sup> line between lots 25 & 33 south of the outlet and between lots 26 and <sup>34</sup> north of the outlet in town 2 R 11 of the N<sup>th</sup> Corp's Survey.

The line commences at the NE corner of lot 34 <sup>which has been carefully measured</sup> near where the old "Ditchery road" came from the "lower village" and intersects <sup>the head of</sup> Harry Street now Lake View Avenue, and runs from thence south through <sup>the</sup> <sup>lot</sup> <sup>25</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>33</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>34</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>35</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>36</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>37</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>38</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>39</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>40</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>41</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>42</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>43</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>44</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>45</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>46</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>47</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>48</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>49</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>50</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>51</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>52</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>53</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>54</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>55</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>56</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>57</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>58</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>59</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>60</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>61</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>62</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>63</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>64</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>65</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>66</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>67</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>68</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>69</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>70</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>71</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>72</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>73</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>74</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>75</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>76</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>77</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>78</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>79</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>80</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>81</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>82</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>83</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>84</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>85</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>86</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>87</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>88</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>89</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>90</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>91</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>92</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>93</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>94</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>95</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>96</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>97</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>98</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>99</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>100</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>101</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>102</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>103</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>104</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>105</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>106</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>107</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>108</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>109</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>110</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>111</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>112</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>113</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>114</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>115</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>116</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>117</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>118</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>119</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>120</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>121</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>122</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>123</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>124</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>125</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>126</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>127</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>128</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>129</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>130</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>131</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>132</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>133</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>134</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>135</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>136</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>137</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>138</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>139</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>140</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>141</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>142</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>143</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>144</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>145</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>146</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>147</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>148</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>149</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>150</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>151</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>152</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>153</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>154</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>155</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>156</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>157</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>158</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>159</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>160</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>161</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>162</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>163</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>164</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>165</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>166</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>167</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>168</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>169</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>170</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>171</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>172</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>173</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>174</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>175</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>176</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>177</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>178</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>179</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>180</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>181</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>182</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>183</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>184</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>185</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>186</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>187</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>188</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>189</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>190</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>191</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>192</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>193</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>194</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>195</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>196</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>197</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>198</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>199</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>200</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>201</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>202</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>203</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>204</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>205</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>206</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>207</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>208</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>209</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>210</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>211</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>212</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>213</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>214</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>215</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>216</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>217</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>218</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>219</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>220</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>221</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>222</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>223</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>224</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>225</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>226</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>227</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>228</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>229</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>230</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>231</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>232</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>233</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>234</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>235</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>236</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>237</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>238</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>239</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>240</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>241</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>242</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>243</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>244</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>245</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>246</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>247</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>248</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>249</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>250</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>251</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>252</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>253</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>254</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>255</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>256</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>257</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>258</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>259</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>260</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>261</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>262</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>263</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>264</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>265</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>266</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>267</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>268</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>269</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>270</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>271</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>272</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>273</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>274</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>275</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>276</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>277</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>278</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>279</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>280</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>281</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>282</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>283</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>284</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>285</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>286</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>287</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>288</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>289</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>290</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>291</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>292</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>293</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>294</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>295</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>296</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>297</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>298</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>299</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>300</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>301</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>302</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>303</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>304</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>305</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>306</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>307</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>308</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>309</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>310</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>311</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>312</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>313</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>314</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>315</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>316</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>317</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>318</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>319</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>320</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>321</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>322</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>323</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>324</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>325</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>326</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>327</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>328</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>329</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>330</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>331</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>332</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>333</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>334</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>335</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>336</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>337</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>338</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>339</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>340</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>341</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>342</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>343</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>344</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>345</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>346</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>347</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>348</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>349</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>350</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>351</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>352</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>353</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>354</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>355</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>356</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>357</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>358</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>359</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>360</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>361</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>362</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>363</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>364</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>365</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>366</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>367</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>368</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>369</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>370</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>371</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>372</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>373</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>374</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>375</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>376</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>377</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>378</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>379</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>380</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>381</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>382</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>383</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>384</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>385</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>386</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>387</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>388</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>389</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>390</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>391</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>392</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>393</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>394</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>395</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>396</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>397</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>398</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>399</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>400</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>401</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>402</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>403</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>404</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>405</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>406</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>407</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>408</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>409</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>410</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>411</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>412</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>413</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>414</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>415</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>416</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>417</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>418</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>419</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>420</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>421</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>422</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>423</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>424</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>425</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>426</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>427</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>428</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>429</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>430</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>431</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>432</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>433</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>434</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>435</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>436</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>437</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>438</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>439</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>440</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>441</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>442</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>443</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>444</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>445</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>446</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>447</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>448</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>449</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>450</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>451</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>452</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>453</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>454</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>455</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>456</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>457</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>458</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>459</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>460</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>461</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>462</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>463</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>464</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>465</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>466</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>467</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>468</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>469</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>470</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>471</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>472</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>473</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>474</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>475</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>476</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>477</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>478</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>479</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>480</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>481</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>482</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>483</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>484</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>485</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>486</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>487</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>488</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>489</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>490</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>491</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>492</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>493</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>494</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>495</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>496</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>497</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>498</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>499</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>500</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>501</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>502</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>503</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>504</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>505</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>506</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>507</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>508</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>509</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>510</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>511</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>512</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>513</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>514</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>515</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>516</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>517</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>518</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>519</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>520</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>521</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>522</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>523</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>524</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>525</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>526</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>527</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>528</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>529</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>530</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>531</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>532</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>533</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>534</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>535</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>536</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>537</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>538</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>539</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>540</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>541</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>542</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>543</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>544</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>545</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>546</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>547</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>548</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>549</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>550</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>551</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>552</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>553</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>554</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>555</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>556</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>557</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>558</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>559</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>560</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>561</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>562</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>563</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>564</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>565</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>566</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>567</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>568</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>569</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>570</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>571</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>572</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>573</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>574</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>575</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>576</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>577</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>578</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>579</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>580</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>581</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>582</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>583</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>584</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>585</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>586</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>587</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>588</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>589</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>590</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>591</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>592</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>593</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>594</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>595</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>596</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>597</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>598</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>599</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>600</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>601</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>602</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>603</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>604</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>605</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>606</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>607</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>608</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>609</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>610</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>611</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>612</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>613</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>614</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>615</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>616</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>617</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>618</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>619</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>620</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>621</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>622</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>623</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>624</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>625</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>626</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>627</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>628</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>629</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>630</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>631</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>632</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>633</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>634</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>635</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>636</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>637</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>638</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>639</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>640</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>641</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>642</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>643</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>644</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>645</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>646</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>647</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>648</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>649</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>650</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>651</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>652</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>653</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>654</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>655</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>656</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>657</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>658</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>659</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>660</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>661</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>662</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>663</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>664</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>665</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>666</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>667</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>668</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>669</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>670</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>671</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>672</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>673</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>674</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>675</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>676</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>677</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>678</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>679</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>680</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>681</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>682</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>683</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>684</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>685</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>686</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>687</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>688</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>689</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>690</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>691</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>692</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>693</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>694</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>695</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>696</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>697</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>698</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>699</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>700</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>701</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>702</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>703</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>704</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>705</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>706</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>707</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>708</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>709</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>710</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>711</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>712</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>713</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>714</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>715</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>716</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>717</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>718</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>719</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>720</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>721</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>722</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>723</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>724</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>725</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>726</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>727</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>728</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>729</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>730</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>731</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>732</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>733</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>734</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>735</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>736</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>737</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>738</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>739</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>740</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>741</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>742</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>743</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>744</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>745</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>746</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>747</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>748</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>749</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>750</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>751</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>752</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>753</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>754</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>755</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>756</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>757</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>758</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>759</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>760</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>761</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>762</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>763</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>764</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>765</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>766</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>767</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>768</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>769</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>770</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>771</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>772</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>773</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>774</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>775</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>776</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>777</sup> <



returned <sup>to purchase</sup> and entered in the water power I had <sup>used</sup> and returned to Jersey town and purchased a large share of the land I owned south of the outlet and became one of our most active citizens in public improvements and in the betterment <sup>of the village</sup> and laying <sup>south of the outlet</sup> the foundations of good society. He was prosperous in his early land operations and made by his industry and economy a good property. He died <sup>on the 3</sup> 1862 at the age of 73 and his widow still survived and if I recollect she is the only <sup>surviving</sup> resident in Jersey town that was there when I located at the Rapids in May of 1815. No citizens of the village at that period that wanted land for improvement but had a chance to buy of me on a credit at a small advance for its cost, interest & taxes, then a large share of the land <sup>returned</sup> land that I purchased was soon improved and the whole water power employed to the full extent of its capacity and that part of the village included in my part of the village was soon settled, yet during this time Judge P declined selling land up east in lots or any part of his water power and from 1825 to 1837 I think there was land sold by the acre on Grand's first purchase and during this period very few lots were sold west of main street and those who had bought towards the steam boat landing & made improvements did not increase in value & those towards the S.W. land declined in value & some houses became tenements. Almost the entire growth of the village from 1824 to 1837 was east of main street.

For some years I was not disposed to buy out lots on the land I had allotted to my self as a small farm & homestead which embraced my future allotments, but as the water power was improved and the great employment to many men while the more extensive water power of Judge P being mostly confined to lumbering employ few hands comparatively to that I had sold. I finally sold two village lots on the <sup>to be improved</sup> north side of the Defterville road next east of R.F. Furtors homestead. I had then determined whether I would sell any more but from urgent applications I continued selling lots on the north side of the Defterville road <sup>also on the south side east of the Methodist church</sup> & then along the saw factory road now Church street but in <sup>all</sup> cases required the purchaser to build on them & the more I sold

# The line between Judge Pendegast tract and my purchase was the north and south lines between lots 25 + 33, <sup>south of the outlet</sup> + 26 + 34, <sup>north of the outlet</sup> town 2 Range 11 of the Hall and Co surveys - The line commenced at the N E corner of lot 34 <sup>near</sup> where the "old distillery road" comes from the lower village, intersects Harry St now Lakeview Avenue and runs from thence south through Lakeview Avenue through ~~the~~ <sup>Mrs</sup> Cowling lot, and the homestead grounds of Lewis Hall Esqr and thence south through the ground of R F Fern <sup>belonging to the</sup> town Esqr and thence still south on the west side of my <sup>former</sup> homestead grounds now Union school to the south end of the line on the then N shore of the outlet; the corner point is now on the north side of the R R embankment. Thence across the outlet to the N W corner of lot 25 on the south shore of the outlet and from thence <sup>south</sup> <sup>across</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>outlet</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>N</sup> <sup>W</sup> <sup>corner</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>lot</sup> <sup>25</sup> <sup>on</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>south</sup> <sup>shore</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>outlet</sup> and from thence <sup>on</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>line</sup> <sup>between</sup> <sup>lots</sup> <sup>25</sup> <sup>+</sup> <sup>33</sup> through what is now Post West street to the township line between the first and second township <sup>now</sup> <sup>or</sup> <sup>late</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>north</sup> <sup>line</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>Duncan</sup> <sup>Allens</sup> <sup>land</sup> <sup>formerly</sup> <sup>Dr</sup> <sup>Lubin</sup> <sup>Huyetras</sup> <sup>land</sup>, originally settled by Harry Morgan in 1812. Judge Pendegast had not cleared any land near my line <sup>except a few rods</sup> <sup>near</sup> <sup>where</sup> <sup>Harrison</sup> street crossed my line west of the outlet.

The east line of my land was one 1/4 mile from the Defterville road in the  
vicinity of G. E. Bishop's residence on the south of the outlet in the vicinity of <sup>the</sup> Brown  
Kinnick's land

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

James Torrie as I saw it in June 1816, known  
then as the "Rapids", I left Buffalo in  
company with Wm. F. Allen in a Dearborn "Wagon" drawn  
by one horse, made "old Cash's", turned in, fought beavers and  
flea till morning, left at sunrise travelling part of the way  
on the back of the lake & the rest in mud when the trav-  
eller on horseback sank so deep, his hat was only seen above  
the surface, yet when proffered assistance to extricate him  
from his perilous situation, refused, saying "he had a good  
horse under him". At the mouth of Cattaraugus Creek, breakfast  
at Munks, Catfish. Sunset brot. us to Canadaway, noon Fredonia  
slept at Abel's tavern, fare good, Third day via Croft Roads,  
noon Westfield, made halt at Mr John Scotts Mayville, fare good,  
next morning took passage in skiff down the Lake, Samuel  
Tinkham oarsman, fare to the "Rapids", 50¢, each with one  
bottle of whiskey on down trip, & one on his return. The only  
clearings, or beginnings, after leaving Dr Prudergarts and Old  
McIntyres, that could be seen from the Lake, were at Bernus  
Griffiths & a log house at <sup>now</sup> Thivanna, on the east side. On the west  
as I now remember a small opening, at Mathew Prudergarts  
Robert Carrer, near the Bently farm & John Newmans opo-  
site Thivanna, Mr. Solomon Jones on the left shore of the  
outlet  $\frac{3}{4}$  of a mile below the foot of the lake. At the head  
of the "Rapids", near St. B. landing, on the west side, was an open  
grass plot of perhaps  $\frac{1}{2}$  an acre where were signs of the camp  
fires of the early voyagers and the more recent fisherman.  
A Foot Path led thence along the north side the outlet to  
the mills, some timber had been cut about the "old dam",  
where were seen the charred remains of J Prudergarts first

log house in Ind. Tw. I remember some Indian graves on  
the bank just above where the oil refineries are now located  
they were protected by small poles laid cobhouse fashion  
much decayed. The sawmill standing on the site of the  
present Furniture shop now owned Ford & Wood, next  
below the Gristmill, then the frame of the projected Cotton  
factory, Jacob Fenton's tavern & earthen ware shop. between  
Main St & Batters alley near the factory now a bridge across  
the outlet just below the gristmill. A small house for  
boarding mill hands & blacksmith shop occupied by  
a Dr. Daniels, above main & south of first st. S & N Brn-  
dengast store 1/2 story rough boarded stood cor. 1<sup>st</sup> and main  
st. west side. John Blowers next north & Jonathan Case  
2 story frame, kept Tavern, south of 2<sup>nd</sup> same side. The same  
building constitutes part of James Tom House extending to  
Mechanics Alley on the west. Jas. Brndengast house 1 story  
50 ft north of 2<sup>nd</sup> & west of main st. below in rear Thineas  
Palmsider Jr. cor. 3<sup>rd</sup> south side, 2 story frame partly enclosed  
Frame 2 stories by ~~William~~ Thieader, corner north of 3<sup>rd</sup> west of  
main st. J. W. Harvey small blacksmith shop in rear near  
the tin snamp. Ebenezer Freeman & John Haine had each a  
small home on Cherry street south of 2<sup>nd</sup> st. A small board  
shanty stood in the center of main just below 2<sup>nd</sup> st occupied  
by Thineas Stevens with some articles in the grocery line  
on the east side of main south of 3<sup>rd</sup>. Horatio Dix was en-  
closing a 2 story frame, below the Forbes, next W. F. Allen's  
house & store. Ebenezer Chesney on pine st. 50 ft. north of 2<sup>nd</sup>  
st. Horace Blancher & Walter Simmons east side of pine  
between 2<sup>nd</sup> & 3<sup>rd</sup>. Dolloff's Plank house east of spring was too



from town to be called a suburb. The road to Frank set-  
tled along the grove just west of G. Tiffany's residence  
thence crossing Barritt street above G. S. Britton's, a road I  
think left above this point, by mistake, the footman reached  
Higley & Amos Birch's. Beyond this "Goose Creek" & bluffs  
The trail south left near the foot of the old locks thence  
Southeasterly between the skating rink & G. Tiffany's dwelling house  
continuing the same course near Mrs. Hall's & up the west  
side of ravine to Mrs. Morgan's. The road to Mayville  
near from corner of Main & 3<sup>rd</sup> St. passing near N. K. Ransom  
Thence to cemetery avenue, the sand pits near Phineas Cross  
man's, thence by the Jones place, Jonas Simmons & Major Griffith's.  
The trail to Dexterville left the above road near Samuel  
Crossby's, continuing on the ridge till it intersects 2<sup>nd</sup> street at  
a bottomut tree standing north side of street, just below C. L.  
Jefferson's dwelling in Dexterville. The water, at this time about  
the 15<sup>th</sup> of June, was at good rafting stage. For single flat  
forms, I rode on one down to slippery rock, near Dexterville  
pilot, a craftsman by name of Lemmy, who kept it from  
striking shore by a "sitting pole" only. It is my opinion the  
amount of water discharge by the Chautauque outlet during  
(say) 4 months of the summer & fall, of late years, will not ex-  
ceed one fourth of that of half a century ago. This great in-  
disproportion does not hold for the balance of the year, the  
discharge now (14 Oct 1871) is decidedly less & has been the three  
months past than ever before, as I remember. I cannot  
flatter myself that the above will add to your knowledge  
of our river & surroundings, but you will please receive it  
with kind regards of an old neighbor. Giles Tiffany

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Wm. S. Tilgner's Account  
about James T. ...  
June 1876

To the Editors of the Jamistown Journal and Democrat

Gentlemen, When last in Jamistown I met an old friend and congratulated him on his successful sale of village lots <sup>in Jamistown</sup> on land he purchased <sup>south of the outlet</sup> a few years since. I observed to him I presume you will <sup>make</sup> more than I did on the sale of that land - But said the gentleman, with surprise, the man from whom I purchased it had his title <sup>direct</sup> from the Halland Company, for I have seen his deed. Yes, I presume that is true, but I <sup>once</sup> ~~was~~ <sup>is on a part</sup> ~~came~~ <sup>of which</sup> the entire lot south of the outlet <sup>from</sup> which your land <sup>has few of</sup> ~~was~~ <sup>now</sup> used that land and the <sup>few</sup> citizens of that date, <sup>that</sup> remain, it <sup>was</sup> not strange that it was forgotten. The same thing will occur <sup>where the land</sup> relative to most of the land in a few years, where the land was purchased by article <sup>not</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>deeded by the original proprietor</sup> ~~even~~ <sup>to a good fair</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>to transfer</sup> article from the H L Company & deeded <sup>by</sup> the Company to the assignee, & the deed to him <sup>being the only public</sup> ~~recorded~~ <sup>widened</sup> there is no ~~public record~~ to show <sup>the</sup> ~~the~~ original purchaser ever owned or a copy of it as the old articles <sup>with some by some</sup> and large share of them have already gone to the paper mills - Where this is the case the only remaining source of information as to the <sup>and original purchase</sup> ~~early~~ <sup>be carefully preserved</sup> settlers ~~in such cases~~, is the old assessment rolls which should ~~remain~~ <sup>be</sup> in the town clerk's office; But I regret, that on examination, I have found that nearly all the old assessment rolls of the town of Ellicott, are missing - The towns which have been organized from Ellicott <sup>have</sup> ~~has~~ an interest in the preservation of our old assessment rolls to show early settlers and residents <sup>in their towns</sup> - From examination I find the old assessment rolls in nearly all the old towns are <sup>missing</sup> with the exception of Pompey where I find the old rolls are nearly complete and from which I obtained the names <sup>many the earliest</sup> of old settlers of Ellicott, which is in not a few cases <sup>written</sup> the only evidence remaining that such persons ever resided in Ellicott. I make this digression to call the attention of town clerks to the importance of preserving old assessment rolls.

Previous to my purchase, Judge Prendergast owned <sup>some of</sup> the land <sup>extending 1/4 mile east of his plot</sup> south of the village plot, about 3/4 a mile and north of the plot about 3/4 of a mile and <sup>a</sup> much greater distance west, and there was no cleared land <sup>but his</sup> within sight of the village, it being wholly surrounded by timbered land, and the land between Jamistown and Defterville, was a wilderness owned by the Halland Company - Judge Prendergast refused to sell any <sup>of his</sup> land except in village lots, nor would he sell or lease any water <sup>power</sup> and never <sup>in his final sale</sup> ~~did~~ <sup>the land</sup> ~~sell~~ <sup>in 1836</sup> ~~any~~ <sup>to some 1/2 etc</sup> ~~except~~ <sup>the water power</sup> a water factory mill - The water power

except that used by <sup>almost</sup> Mr. Hightower, was wholly devoted to man-  
facturing boards and he had not cleared land enough to raise  
his own hay and pasture and the growth of vegetables for his own  
use - Thus the inhabitants of the village were without pasture or ground  
for fruit trees and vegetables unless on village lots. All the settlers felt this was bad  
In 1816 I applied to the agent of the Holland Land Company at Mayville  
to purchase the first lot east and adjoining Judge Poind's land north of the  
creek, when the agent informed me that all the <sup>unsold</sup> land between  
Janestown and Deerpark was "Reserved land" and regretted that he  
could not accommodate me, but as soon as it was for sale I  
should have the first refusal" As business called to Mayville oc-  
casionaly, I called at the Land Office to enquire about that reserved  
land and <sup>uniformly</sup> had a repetition of his answer on  
the original application - I did not understand about these reser-  
vations as I now do. - In time Mr. Elliott of Batavia the principal  
agent, on the Holland purchase for some 20 years, and a relative to the  
agent at Mayville retired from the office and was succeeded by  
Jacob Otto, who was appointed by the general or head agent of  
the Company who resided at Philadelphia - <sup>the matter of reservations</sup> <sup>to the</sup>  
knowledge of Mr. Ruste about the land reservations as well as <sup>some</sup> other  
grievances of the settlers, he issued an address or circular saying  
among other things that there were no reservations on the company's  
land. I then went to Mayville and saw the agent and <sup>renewed</sup>  
my application <sup>with</sup> the observation that I saw there were <sup>no</sup> reser-  
vations; he said <sup>it was</sup> so; but by some recent arrangement he was  
not fully authorized to sell it then, but expected to be able to do it soon  
and gave the old assurance. I had <sup>then</sup> become convinced that  
something was wrong and determined to find where it was, and  
immediately applied <sup>through a friend</sup> in Philadelphia for the land,  
and gave a statement of my application. Mr. Ruste promptly  
answered <sup>me by</sup> his letter (which I have) sent me by way of the  
agent at Batavia, saying he had never authorized a reservation  
since the opening of the H.L. Co's land for sale  
and if the agent at Mayville did not sell me the land, to apply  
to Mr. Otto of Batavia. I had but just received my letter from Mr. Ruste  
before the agent at Mayville sent to me I could have the land. I went to  
Mayville and on entering the office I was informed that he was authorized  
to sell me the land. I applied for the first 1/3 as surveyed by the H.L.C., when  
I was informed <sup>he could not</sup> I must take the whole reservation - The part adjoining  
the Pendergast purchase at \$11 an acre. A higher price than he had  
ever sold any <sup>H.L. Company</sup> land in the County - I at once denounced the course as



and deeded to the purchasers or assigns Army Street was <sup>W. W. Childs, J. J. W. Childs, J. J. W. Childs</sup>  
added to others among was Royal Key, W. R. Rogers, Henry Baker, J. H. Keeler  
Lewis Hall and others besides the land with water power and Village lots  
in my several allotments. After I had improved considerable  
land south of the outlet, and contracted to sell it, I applied to  
the agent at Mayville <sup>H. L. Company</sup> <sup>about 70 acres</sup> <sup>to divide the outlet</sup>  
to Pendry's line, and make separate contracts <sup>to divide the outlet</sup>  
I would obtain a survey of the parcels and plots of them by Almon J. S. Survey  
or I accordingly surveyed and my articles and obtained separate  
articles for some <sup>small</sup> parcels among which I think was <sup>two</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>be</sup> <sup>deeded</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>Deen</sup> <sup>by</sup> <sup>Almon</sup>

another to Mr Rawson and another to R. F. Denton another  
to <sup>Palmer</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>House</sup> <sup>Alley</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>lot</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>part</sup> <sup>north</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>Mr</sup> <sup>Eddy</sup> <sup>and</sup> <sup>between</sup> <sup>Pendry</sup> <sup>arts</sup>  
line and outlet I took a deed from the Holland Company to secure the  
water power. This small piece was the only land I deeded from the  
H. L. Company, all the "Reserved" which I bought <sup>south</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>outlet</sup>  
No citizen <sup>at</sup> <sup>that</sup> <sup>day</sup> <sup>that</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>improve</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>and</sup>  
had a chance to buy <sup>at</sup> <sup>a</sup> <sup>small</sup> <sup>amount</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>it</sup>. Thus all the land purchase  
is as soon improved and the water power fully employed, and that part of the  
present village was pretty rapidly settled. At first I was not disposed to lay out

building lots, but as the lower water <sup>was</sup> <sup>improved</sup> <sup>I</sup> <sup>was</sup> <sup>waxed</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>lay</sup> <sup>out</sup> <sup>lots</sup>.  
I began by laying out <sup>lots</sup> <sup>on</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>side</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>Second</sup> <sup>Street</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>fast</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>they</sup> <sup>were</sup> <sup>wanted</sup> <sup>for</sup> <sup>im-</sup>  
provement and one allotment after another was laid out as indicated by the letters  
attached to the allotments, <sup>and</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>wanted</sup> <sup>for</sup> <sup>sell</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>village</sup> <sup>I</sup> <sup>would</sup> <sup>have</sup>  
pursued a different plan of streets and lots <sup>but</sup> <sup>I</sup> <sup>found</sup> <sup>that</sup> <sup>I</sup> <sup>was</sup> <sup>governed</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>the</sup>  
size <sup>of</sup> <sup>lots</sup> <sup>generally</sup> <sup>by</sup> <sup>Judge</sup> <sup>Pendry</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>example</sup> <sup>I</sup> <sup>was</sup> <sup>inex-</sup> <sup>perienced</sup> <sup>but</sup> <sup>with</sup> <sup>my</sup>  
present experience I would have laid out the <sup>lots</sup> <sup>larger</sup> <sup>with</sup> <sup>narrower</sup> <sup>streets</sup>

and in a proper place a large public square, and charged higher for lots.  
I became convinced of this when too late to remedy my mistake  
When I commenced laying out lots the project was ridiculed by some as  
visionary, but the progress of the village west of main street <sup>near</sup> <sup>by</sup>  
ceased, while the <sup>it</sup> <sup>was</sup> <sup>constantly</sup> <sup>progressing</sup> <sup>east</sup>. The lots laid out  
by Messrs Chandler & Minor, by Gen. George Allen, and by Mr Proodhead and

Land I once owned - The <sup>whole</sup> <sup>sale</sup> <sup>was</sup> <sup>made</sup> <sup>by</sup> <sup>Henry</sup> <sup>Baker</sup> <sup>Esqr</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>village</sup>  
in 1836 of all his farm town property, <sup>information</sup> <sup>was</sup> <sup>obtained</sup> <sup>by</sup> <sup>him</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>to</sup>  
not that because purchasers of surrounding lands as well as water power  
privileges could be purchased that had previously been withheld from  
sale - I repeat Judge Pendry was a kind neighbor and good citizen  
but his plan of building up a village <sup>was</sup> <sup>a</sup> <sup>mistaken</sup> <sup>one</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>with</sup> <sup>power</sup>  
Nearly all the increase of the village for some years was in the land I purchased  
which consequently no improvements were made west of main street

Statement of the sale of Jas. Brown's boards at Pittsburg in the Spring of 1815. and the application of the proceeds thereof, made at the time of the sale, and settlement immediately thereafter, agreeable to the best of my own recollection, and such memoranda as the books of the firm affords

1 <sup>st</sup>	Total Amt. of Sales of Boards			\$ 3460 87
	" Goods purchased at Pitts. & expenses thereon	\$ 2372 06		
	" Cash	1088 81		3460 87
2 <sup>d</sup>	Left at the Jas. Brown Store goods	\$ 1342 33		
	Goods bro. to the Mayville store & expenses thereon	1029 73		
	Cash from Pittsburg	1088 81		
		\$ 3460 87		3460 87
3 <sup>d</sup>	James Brown Store to Jas. Brown August Spring of 1815 - Boards sold at Pittsburg			\$ 3460 87
	or as stated on Invoiced book	\$ 2798 87		
	" Balance of \$662.00 which was deducted	662 00		
	" from the sum of \$1342.33 the amt. of			\$ 3460 87
	" goods left at James Brown			
4 <sup>th</sup> 1815 May 8 <sup>th</sup>	Mayville Store with Jas. Brown store Do - Cash &c. Two thousand seven hundred and ninety eight dollars & eighty seven cents Received on the sale of boards at Pittsburg as follows			\$ 2798 87
	Expenses at Pittsburg and Goods bro. to Mayville &c. &c.	\$ 1029 73		
	Cash from Pittsburg	1088 81		
	Balance of \$680.33 which was deducted	680 33		
	from the sum of \$1342.33 - the amount of goods left at James Brown			2798 87

Memorandum of Goods Brought from Pittsburgh 8th May 1815 and returned at James Town Store June 12th 1815

1 Keg Tobacco 102	18 1/2	18 36
1 Box 8 by 10 Staps	14 1/2	14 00
1 Bbl Whiskey 2 1/2 Gall.	20 1/2	24 33
1 Keg 10 Nails 159 lb	14 1/2	23 05
1 " 6 " " 131	17	22 27
35 lb Coffee	35	12 25
40 " Sapon Tea	18 1/2	75 00
1 Keg 8 Pins 150 lb	15 1/2	23 25
1 " 8 Nails 131	15 1/2	20 31
3 Box 8 1/2 Tumblers	11 1/2	3 38
406 lb Cotton	25	101 50
10 Bbl Sliced Apple	4 50	4 50
1 Keg 8 Nails 144	15 1/2	23 10
1 " 4 " " 70	20	14 00
2 Box 10 Tumblers	11 1/2	2 25
1/2 " Half Gall Bottles	3 00	4 50
5 " gal "	2 00	10 00
6 " 2 1/2 "	1 50	9 00
56 lb Ladies Smirk Tobacco	25	14 00
1/2 Box 7 by 9 Staps	12 00	06 50
2 Bbl Whiskey 3 1/2 Gall	75	52 13
2 " do 3 1/4 Gall	68 1/2	57 38
1 " do 3 1/4	75	25 50
1 " do 3 1/4	75	27 93
1 " do 3 5/8	75	26 81
1 " do 3 5/8	75	26 25
1 " do 3 7/8	75	28 13
1 " do 3 6/8	70	25 37
1 " do 3 3/4	70	23 45
2 " do 3 1/2	70	48 30
2 " do 3 3/4	70	47 25
1 " do 3 1/2	70	27 30
1 Keg 10 Nails 127 lb	14 1/2	19 41
1 " " " 137	14 1/2	19 86
1 " " " 141	14 1/2	20 45
1 " " " 152	14 1/2	22 04
Amt Car. up		9 17 11

Amt Brought up		9 17 11
1 Keg 10 Nails 142 lb	14 1/2	20 59
1 " " " 138	14 1/2	20 01
1 " " " 159	14 1/2	23 05
1 " " " 150	14 1/2	21 75
1 " 4 " " 59	20	11 80
1 " " " 78	20	15 60
1 " " " 71	20	14 20
1 " " " 76	20	15 20
1 " " " 75	20	15 00
1 Keg Tobacco 107 lb	18	19 26
1 " " " 107	18	19 26
3 Box 8 by 10 Staps	14 00	42 00
30 Bbl Flour	6 25	187 50
		1342 33

Bills of Goods Brought at Pittsburgh in the Spring of 1815

Apr 21	M. Brown & Co	991 10
" 19	Culton & M. Nickle	259 85
" 22	Whitney & Co	366 08
" 19	Bosler & Co	266 20
May 6	James Adams	42 00
Apr 17	N. Cunningham	11 50
" 20	George Burns	45 95
May 8	J. Davis	83 34
	Paid Expenses	81 46
	" " " " " " "	77 50
	" " " " " " "	129 20
12 1/2	Travelling Expenses	16 00
	On Bonus account	
	Courant + not ch. w. his bill	
	about. Store \$150 + 38	1 88
		2372 06



In Chancery -  
Robertson Whitehead  
William Prudden & Co.

27.

Chautauque County ss.

Jedediah Prudden } Jedediah Prudden being duly sworn says that the foregoing <sup>a statement of</sup> within is the whole of his account as it respects the trip to Pittsburgh in the Spring of the year 1815, that said account includes both debits and credits, and is correct, as he confidently believes, that he does not know of any error or omission therein to the prejudice of any of the other parties.

Sworn & subscribed this 26<sup>th</sup> day of Sept. 1838.  
Joseph Wait  
Clerk in Chancery  
Residing in Chautauque County

Jedediah Prudden

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Statement of the  
of Chas. Denninger  
travels at Pittsburgh  
in the Spring of 1815

No. 4.

Page 33 Complete Book

A majority of the parties are authorized to offer  
(at their discretion) to the Erie RR company or  
to sell & convey to and for use of said company  
not exceeding 1/4 of the whole span pieces of land  
& water power as a gift or donation on condition  
only that said company shall build RR with  
within 6 years build R.R. single track for Rutherford  
County on the River to Lake Erie interlocutory they  
and touching this track

4. The parties shall not in any way, in execution  
or disposition of their interest except in manner following

Any party may mortgage his <sup>or their</sup> interest by ob-  
taining the written consent of a majority of the  
parties to these presents who shall hold an interest  
at the time of such consent, or if any one or  
more shall wish to sell or dispose of their interest  
& shall not obtain consent of a majority as above  
he shall first offer his property to the remaining par-  
ties at a specified price which shall be at the  
lowest price he will sell & should remaining members  
decline to purchase for benefit of remaining  
parties then any individual of opinion here prefers  
on his own account. But it is expressly agreed that  
no sale shall be valid unless either by consent  
of the remaining parties of these presents until above  
declined.

5. Any time after the date aforesaid or written re-  
quest of majority of parties make equal division

6. Death of a party not to in point of right of others &  
7. Each party holds one sixth

24 June 1841 Agree ment between Barrett &  
Patterson with Henry Baker - sell all personal property  
or demands to Baker thereby release all debts interest. Baker goes  
to reduce by his own means the debt to 35000 \$

Proposed regulations  
among the purchasers  
of the Pennsylvania  
Institute for Permitted  
Purchase of 3.7.7.8. 1888  
The proposed regulations from  
the proposed company

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, N.Y. 14185

Article of Agreement and lease made this 7<sup>th</sup> day of February  
eighteen hundred and thirty two between Eliza T Foote of Jonestown  
Wife of the first part and Woodley W Chandler and John W Windsor of the  
same place of the second part Witnesseth, that said Foote has leased to said  
parties of the second part a piece of ground for to dig clay & make brick.  
The piece of ground contains about one and one fourth acres of land and  
lies north of the Jonestown and Ellicottville road and is bounded as follows  
Commencing at a stake a few feet east of a black pine stump on the north side  
of said road and about two rods from the line of E Lewis land and runs from thence  
a course west of north to the center of the roots of a large forked tree which is ter-  
minated up by the fence at the edge of the woods, from thence along the course of the body  
of the tree as it lies, to the first gulph which is a little north of and near the house  
now occupied by said Windsor, from thence down the gulph to the line between said  
Foote & Lewis land, from thence further by along said line to the high way  
from thence to the place of the crossing of said Windsor and Chandler are to  
make and sustain during the term of this lease a good substantial & safe  
fence between the aforesaid land and the other land of said Foote & to clear said  
Foote and his representatives from any expenses in fencing any part of the land here  
by leased - The said Windsor & Chandler have said Foote liberty to take the rails  
from the fence which said Foote built on the east line along the land hereby les-  
sed - Windsor & Chandler are to have the privilege of taking away the fence  
which they make, at the expiration of the lease but they or their heirs are to leave  
said fence along the east line between said Foote & Lewis land - The said Windsor  
and Chandler are to have the privilege of digging all the clay on said land during the  
term of this lease but they are to leave the surface of the ground as far as prac-  
ticable at the expiration of the lease, sufficiently even & smooth for cultiva-  
tion by plowing & sowing - Said Windsor & Chandler are to pay all taxes & assessments on  
the land leased when they become due - Said Windsor <sup>Chandler</sup> or their heirs are to and  
with said Foote or his legal representatives that they will pay a rent of one hun-  
dred thousand of real good merchantable brick all of which shall

in all respects fit for building good durable brick houses and  
chimneys - The brick to be paid one year from the first day of July next  
one hundred and seven thousand of such brick one year thereafter as  
said Chondler & Winters may choose - It is understood that of Chondler  
& Winters take the clay from under the house now occupied by Enrich Lewis  
on said land they are to do it by consent of said land or in such a manner as  
not to make any expense to said Toste or his representatives although they may  
use his name in doing it - Said Toste or his representatives are to have  
reasonable and proper ground and room for said brick to remain until they shall  
wish to take them away - Said Toste or representatives are to have the  
right of re-entry at pleasure at the expiration of the lease or at any  
time before it if said Chondler & Winters refuse or neglect to fulfill this agree-  
ment & lease and they are also or this lease to pay all down cast which  
said Toste or representatives may sustain by said W. Chondler not fulfill-  
ing this lease agreement - It is understood that the fences are to be  
made and removed in such a way as not to injure said Toste's meadow or  
crops to down cast or depreciation while it is down - Lease expires 5 years from

Nov 1 - 1831. Witness our hands & seals this day and year first above written

In presence of  
John K. Bagard

E. J. Toste

W. W. Chandler  
J. W. Winger

It is also agreed as above that said Winters & Chandler on whose privilege & order  
to make the clay into brick on the land part of ground provided water is first to be reserved  
for any building which said Toste or heirs may choose built or may erect 877

Recd of Messrs Chandler Winsor the brick within  
mentioned by pay to Meeting house for Mr Keys 2 by C & W  
note for seven ten thousand of brick - E. J. Foote  
(one hundred seven thousand)

Agreement & lease

E. J. Foote with Chandler & Winsor

Brick yard & clay

Price 100000 Brick

(Printed)

Survey of a road in alteration of a road running  
from main Street in Junntown to near Edge and  
Works which was laid out Oct 13 1815

Beginning in the center of second street at the east  
side of main street running thence north  $77^{\circ} 20'$  20 rods  
east <sup>along the center</sup> of second street sixteen chains 20 links - thence north  $88^{\circ} 1/2'$   
East thirteen chains to a hemlock, thence north  $43^{\circ}$  East  
44 chains to the line between the E & middle  $1/3$   
of lot 2 & 2 - town 11 Range near where the old survey crosses  
the same

Copy

E. J. Foot, Surveyor

Dated Oct 12 1822

Horace Allen } Comd.  
David Bayd }

From town records of the town of Ellipton Vol 2 Page 82.

There is a mistake in <sup>recordin</sup> the first course, it should have been recorded  
North  $79^{\circ} 20' - 16$  chains 20

over

copy of original deeds, deeds of Jonathan Village  
later given boundaries in full by conveys & distances  
which make the east west streets N 77 <sup>20</sup> East  
see my eldest deeds on file - J P wife to Long Scissors  
J P wife to the Frontis - Francis Lamb to B Hall &c

Survey of 2<sup>d</sup> &  
Foot Streets

Oct. 12 1802

Extract from the record

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



... of the ...  
... of an agreement  
... this the day of June  
... between Henry Baker of  
... James ... Chautauque County  
... the first part and  
... of the place of ...  
... the second part ...  
... the said party of the first  
... having purchased a mill  
... at the mouth of the Chautauque  
... the town of Collett  
... a ... and  
... to erect a dam ...  
... the present season. The said party  
... the first part has this day  
... one half of the said purch  
... to the said party of the second  
... which the said parties  
... of the second part and pay one  
... of the said  
... half of the out  
... Thomas ... Arthur  
... also to be at one half the  
... of the erection of the dam  
... and ... mill and all such other

improvements as the said parties at  
the first and second parts may  
see proper to make. The said parties  
of the said first and second parts  
are to be to all intents and purposes  
joint and equal copartners in the purchase  
and ownership of the said site and  
improvements and are to be equal in  
the purchase of logs and all other things  
that appertain to or shall grow out  
of the said business and are also to  
be to pay all expenses, taxes and profits.

The said parties of the second part  
agree that all the goods that  
may be sold by them in the execution  
of the said mill and on after the  
mill shall be in operation to the  
persons who take jobs, saw and the  
like shall be subject to a deduct  
ion of ten per cent to the said  
concern and the said party of the  
first part agrees on his part to  
make the same deduction for all prop-  
erty which he may put into the concern.

The said parties further agree each  
to the other that if either party  
shall advance more money than the other  
that interest shall be allowed by the other  
party and interest is to be allowed  
them for on the receipt of all property  
which either party may pay into the concern  
and after that said property shall have been paid

into the concern <sup>one year</sup> - all ~~old~~ debts  
which either party may have <sup>against</sup>  
good and men that which shall go into  
the said business shall be subject to  
a mutual agreement or arrangement  
The copartnership shall continue  
until mutual approbation shall  
dissolve it

Sealed and delivered  
in the presence of

Henry Baker

C. B. Butler

P. O. [Signature]

CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

into the common  
direct written  
the way  
The  
order

Henry Parker

23

Wm. W. W.

10 June 1826

to build a mill in  
partnership with  
Robert Loring

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

In May 1832 I commenced the mercantile business in the village of Lanesboro, my old employer Mr Butler, having sold out his stock in trade to Messrs Austin & Leonard, they occupied the old Plumb & Co store.

I opened my stock of goods in a store belonging to Geo Couch next door south of the office of S. A. Brown Esq, where I remained until the fall of 1833 when I formed a partnership with my old friend & employer Mr Butler Esq, & we removed to the new Pointe store just then erected by H. Plumb Esq, on the corner of Main & 3<sup>rd</sup> Streets, where we continued until the winter of 1835 when I sold my interest to Mr Butler. In the Spring of 1836, I removed to Lincolnville, & had charge of a store for J. Havens until April 1837 when I returned to Lanesboro.

I was appointed an agent of the Chontaugus County Mutual Insurance Company, at its organization in 1826 which I retained until I left the State in 1842. As agent of this company I visited almost every town in the Co.

and interested many of the Farmers  
and Mechanics, as well as Merchants  
& others by insuring their property,  
which proved I believe very satisfac-  
tory to the Company. In the Spring  
of 1838 I was elected to the office of  
Constable of the town of Ellicast &  
retained by annual election until  
1842 when I removed to this State  
& settled in the County of Oakland,  
where I remained engaged in Mercantile  
business until July 1<sup>st</sup> 1845 when I removed  
to this city & commenced the study of  
the law with my brother H.W.M.

This Summer of 1846 I spent 4 months  
with my wife on Lake Superior for the  
benefit of her health, the winter of 1846 & 7  
I was in the employ of the M.C.R.R. Co. in  
the examination of titles for the right of  
way over which their Road passes. In the  
Spring of 1848 at the City Charter Election  
I was elected a Justice of the Peace for the  
City & County, which office I held for 4 years  
but in the fall of 1850 finding business not  
very good, I had an offer of Cashiership  
in the Savings Bank of this city which  
I accepted, and remained in that situation  
until August 1854, when I resigned the  
charge, it being very laborious & responsible

My wife was even a very fertile  
woman, never enjoying good health,  
with whom I lived in peace & happiness  
until the 12<sup>th</sup> of April 1856, when her pure  
spirit took its departure to the bright spirit  
land, where I expect one long to meet her  
in that blessed abode when sighing & sorrow  
are done away. I remained single until  
the last of April 1857 when I again married  
a Miss Leathman A. Fisher, with whom I now  
reside in the enjoyment of domestic happiness  
in this city.

My next brother John R. Matten was  
born March 22 1810, left home in May 1825 &  
went to reside with a maternal uncle in Pinesburg  
Co. New York, he remained in that & adjacent country  
until 1834, when he removed to Chautauque Co  
with his family, he having married in 1831 in  
Albany a Miss Dickinson, John settled at Westfield  
& purchased of Hon John R. Campbell what was  
known as the Campbell's Mills near the village of  
Westfield where he remained until the Spring  
of 1857 when he removed to Pindigun ad. N. H.  
in the township of Lyons in the county  
of Livingston about 50 miles North West  
of Detroit. My next brother A. Matten  
was born in Pompey Chautauque Co. Nov 30 1811  
At the age of 10 years he was taken sick  
which terminated in a fever soon upon his

right limb, from which he suffered very  
travelling & but barely recovered, but being  
of a very strong constitution, he has  
outgrown the disease & is now a very  
healthy man, but from the effects of  
the disease is lame one limb being  
much shorter than the other. He attended  
the academy in Andover & read law in the  
office of Hon. J. A. Mullett, he was with me in the  
store at Lancaster about 6 months in 1832  
& pursued his studies with S. A. Brown Esq. and  
in June 1834 was admitted to the Bar of Cham-  
paign County, & licensed by a commission  
signed by Hon. E. S. Trott then the Judge of  
Champaign Co. He left Andover the  
1st day of October 1834 & came to this city  
where he has ever since resided, he im-  
mediately commenced reading law when  
arrived here in the office of Prof. James  
Worth a Bates, and upon the admission of Michigan  
as a state in 1835. Mr. Jamesworth was appointed  
Chancellor & my brother took his place in the  
firm & changed it to Bates & Matteson, in a few  
years Mr. Bates retired from the firm when my  
brother took another of Champaign's sons  
G. J. Douglass as a partner, in which capa-  
city they remained for a number of years, and  
while in the practice of his profession he gained  
the reputation of being one of the best Chancery  
lawyers in the state.



G. J. Butler blacksmith bought the house of David Hazeltine  
corner (N.E.) of Pine & 3<sup>d</sup> Street

In 1841 he built a stone blacksmith shop on the S.E. corner  
of his lot facing 3<sup>d</sup> Street and on the spot where he had a wooden shop  
In 1851 he removed his wooden house a little north & back to  
make room for a brick 1½ story house on the corner and  
he lived in the old wood house so moved N.E. while the  
brick one was building & then into brick. Since then he  
has rented the old wooden house now 1858 still remaining.

Henry Baker built the house where Dr. G. W. Hazeltine 2<sup>nd</sup>  
In 1827 and the same season 3<sup>rd</sup> Street was opened from  
Spring Street through alder flags & mire to Washington Street  
& thence to Fayette Street towards steam boat landing.  
Mr Baker paid

Samuel Barrett built 1½ house south of S. A. Brown office  
in 1818 & sold it to Jesse Smith the to Baker

Russell Shaw came to Jamestown Spring of 1830 and  
Warner Shaw " " " " Fall of 1830 & they  
opened a drug shop in a building belonging to Royal Keys  
which leased they continued drug business until  
and sold out to Dr. W. B. Leonard

Robert D Ward built his house corner of Spring & 5<sup>th</sup> St  
It preceded this some years

Solomon Jones the dwelling house he now owns  
and occupies E side Perry St was framed at  
Asheville by Barnes & Shuman. It was removed  
to Jonestown, partly finished it & sold to John J Leonard  
and from Leonard or his creditors it passed into the hands  
of Solomon Jones Esq

COPYRIGHT © AUTAUGUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

# Index Cong Ch. records Jamestown

Difficulty between J Wait Master of Lodge & the Hazeltines  
 commenced soon after ~~Haynes outrage~~ early in 1827  
 but not before

1827  
 page 1 Wait & Hazeltines brought before ch Dec-13 1827 &  
 referred to committee  
 Dec 13 up at nearly every ch meeting until - all about masonry  
 2 not formally disposed of until July 1828  
 Resolution non interference with masons for merely  
 very members Mason lodges trust of its of present reception  
 Dec 17 1827 of masons into ch remained a quiet one that con-  
 =troversy until

Page 4 Dec 3 1829 D Hazeltine Res to receive Res on masonry passed Dec 17 (29)  
 laid over to Dec 10 1829 when it was passed  
 & ch adjourned until next day 11th Dec

1829  
 Dec 11 page 5 The resolution requiring masons to renounce  
 was passed at once, by dispensing with resolution to  
 lie over until next meeting

page April 10 1830  
 5 Wait offering resigning resolution passed Dec 11 (29)  
 order is us lie on table

Regiment June 3<sup>rd</sup> resigning res called up & on motion of D. Debn / passed  
 page 6 until next meeting

Aug 5 resigning resolution called up & rejected  
 " " Rev Mr. Eddy then asked the church to unite with  
 him in asking of Buff. Park to depulse / pastoral advice  
 & question postponed until 12th Aug inst

Page 6 Donk Hazeltine then presented a complaint against J Wait  
 of diller de falsehood & his letter 2 slips & gave name to who  
 conversation adjourned to 12 inst Aug 1830

Aug 12 Mr Eddy's request for dispensation concerning by Ch.  
 page 7 D H Comp against J Wait tried for stripes of amicus  
 objection to resigning offer & clerk & others chosen Pt  
 after of amicus W. trustees of complaint  
 " 8 voted refer the difficulty to a committee of 3 persons to advise  
 to settle same with letter & report next meeting

Sch 5  
Page 8 Constitution J W Henry to attend Presby at Redona  
The records of the church by the delegate as usual for  
of examination

Presbytery made following entries in records  
approved. Thus for of record of approval some papers taken as to  
Page 8 the keeping of the records viz that prob. question the wisdom of  
making resolutions on mourning matters of the record of State  
Sept 8<sup>th</sup> 1830

Lord's day Sept 12 1830  
Rev<sup>d</sup> was formerly offit of Presb Church & announced to  
the ch Pastoral relation Mr Eddy dis solved

Page 9  
Oct 7 1830 Stated ch meeting Dec below mod  
J W Henry & E Haven in the care of D H & J W Wait  
decided add to record criticisms on minutes

Page 9 Complaint of D H & J W Wait prepared next meeting  
Dec 2 1830 Stated meeting ch Rev Mr Gullet mod W H Ch Pr  
Dec below chm delegate to Presb

Committee on difficulty D H & J W reported in writing  
that matter settled Record of evidence in above case  
Page 9 to be corrected by Gen Henry

1831  
Lord's day Jan 2<sup>nd</sup> Lord's supper ed by Rev E J Gullet

March 2 Stated ch meeting Dec below mod as above  
adjourned 10 hrs

March 7 Gullet mod A H Ch Ch  
Dec below withdrew resignation

Page 10  
April 3<sup>rd</sup> 1831 Lord's supper Rev E J Gullet

Aug 18 1831 Reg ch meeting E J mod H & J W  
J W H & J W committee nominate delegate to Pres in  
Junston  
Reported Dec Gorp delegate at Antioch alt  
E Haven & G. R. Henry committee for exam Presby &  
curry meeting in Junston  
Pastor & then W H & L Sherman to inquire relative to  
applicants for adm to ch

Page 10

Sept 7 1831 Presby met & Rev Mr Gullet report omission  
of chm by male to record

Amasa West from ... the Clergy 11 May 1812 ...  
E point 17 town 4 N 14 on ... 4 acres 2 rods

Amasa West from ... 1814 ... Lot 17 30 15  
208 acres

Amasa West from ... 21 July 1817 one acre in ... \$660

Amasa West from Jonathan Coffin 1822

Jonathan Coffin to William French Allen 14 Dec 1815 ...  
Philad. his wife  
Lot 5 East main & 5 West Pine

Wm Fisher to Hiram Allen \$200 April 1815 same as Coffin to Allen

Divina Webster wife to Eliza F Allen 11 March 1819 Lot 9 Pine St ... \$280

Saml Bennett & Webster to Eliza Allen 12 Aug 1818 Lot 3 7/4 main St  
Consideration 1315\$

1811 Jacob Tutin mortgaged to Martin Pundyst

Pundyst to ... 16 March 1816 No 4 W Pine St \$50

" to Coffin 16 Oct 1816 \$80 to Lot 3 1/4 E side Cherry St

" Lobel Case 5-1/4 1815 \$50 Lot No 10 E of main St

" John Byersall 20 July 1816 Consideration \$50 Lot 17 S Pine St

" Tho. Dickes 16 April 1816 Consideration \$100 Lots 15 & 15 1/2 S Pine St

" Leth Kidder 6-0 April 16 1816 No 19 E main St also No 10 1/2 main St  
No 11 W main St

" Par & Hanson 30 June 1817 - Consideration by Wm Pundyst  
Lands for Pundyst - 20 x 90

" E. Chamer 21 Sept 1815 \$100 No 13, 14, East Pine

" J. Brown Consideration \$250 Lots 12, 13, 14 W main St & E Cherry 7 Aug 17

" Jesse Smith 13 Dec 1815 - No 10 11 W side Pine

Phineas Palmer & Abigail his wife to Gilbert Pallard of County of ...  
4 Dec 1816 & dated 20th March 1816 Consideration \$600 No 9 West side main street

Wm F Allen to Loban Bates 2 June 1817 Lots same conveyed to him by Coffin Consideration \$1,000

Trute to Ballard Lot 8 W main St 25 Sept 1818 Consideration \$200

Trute, G. R. Harvey 20 Oct 1820 Consideration \$500 Lots 5 & 6 East Pine St

" M. E. Chamer 1 Dec 1828 not to be loaned or used for ...

June 30<sup>th</sup> 1820 New Jersey returns order there contained will goods  
July 1<sup>st</sup> 1825 Stephen Hall cut into to show course why not removed  
on the present bank of Grand Jersey

There was a fight of Jones & Pitkin in administration of Justice Boston June 1826  
John Duflot Henry Tucker leave to Court Wharf at New York 1828  
June 25 1829 New Jersey returns order & cut each cut suit at  
taking Henry Grand Jersey off in round but best of river

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Minutes of some land  
 deeds records of them  
 ten years or more

First order  
1<sup>st</sup> 1820 - 20 612  
3<sup>rd</sup> 1828  
4<sup>th</sup> 1828  
Stephen Hall  
Purkin W S G L  
E and J, Judge  
or as per J. ret.

Batavia April 5<sup>th</sup> 1810

James Welch Lot N<sup>o</sup> 14. T. H. R. 13. at \$2<sup>25</sup>/<sub>100</sub> per Acre  
Pay of part of the Purchase money by the first of July  
next.

Page 1118.

I think the above is Mr. Proctor's hand written  
when he was a clerk in the land office at Batavia  
before the Moyville office was established.  
The above is a specimen of writing given soldiers who  
"bought" land & the assignment on the back is a specimen  
of the way the claim was transferred

This Mary sentinal that I give at all Mary  
Right and title to Lot No 14-4-13 to

Job & Katti

James Welch

Chauques Mary 24 - 1910

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUGUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



R. V. Cunningham Esq James town

1827  
Came here 22<sup>nd</sup> June 1827

First regular chow maker in James town  
old saw mill & old grist mill from which mill  
saw has been taken were built about 1760  
11 June - The cotton factory building which grist mill  
only, house south of old site in Dept Riv in E side  
where Judge Hazelton's negroes and a small  
near them in the field

No building west of Liberty Street <sup>to</sup> Keller, Barrett  
& Holman in swamp and part Pub. Co. & Baker  
have not then opened - No house north of field  
to house north of field of Fletcher & Charles Butler & Southland on 4<sup>th</sup> Street  
& 1<sup>st</sup> Street

Bankham and as you enter Cinnamon South  
factory - same year - John Allen lived in a  
small just above & little north of the mill  
Pendergast only grist & saw mills, cloth  
dipping and carding machines  
Laven lives on corner of Liberty street  
the first building in sign

Stares Plumb - Building & Barrett, Clarke Hall  
just beginning in - Keller in J. M. Pendergast  
dipart with remains of the old store

Rt Cunningham  
To Jonestown 22<sup>nd</sup> June 1827  
Whether there found in  
the village

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



No rank except by Virtue & merit

# Sarnistown in Early days - All plebeians no distinction

During first years every man & woman of a family their own matters - when split their own wood or cut & made their own fires & foddered their cows or horse & cleaned their own stables fed their hogs - Tended their own garden & bushes & their own boots & mended themselves - Women did their own household work made their own

clothes their husbands shirts & not infrequently their boots & some provided & mended & made up clothes & sent into family to cut & make clothes & pants - Hardly a woman but could spin wool or flax & usually at least when their knees were tired & tiring yarn. Very few women comparatively speaking kept a bad mood & if they did they were usually daughters of their own neighbors & sat at the same table - <sup>in the way of</sup> often work done off & of some left off

When women confided they would before long employ some girl to work for them a few weeks to do the house work & more than to look after them - The daughters of the best families would occasionally go out & work a few weeks not from necessity but as a matter of accommodation

Women in travail usually invited in all their near neighbors & young women with whom they were intimate & seldom less than 1/2 a dozen present at a labor & the table set & all took a meal including the Physician after the birth & soon in comfortable bed & the child dropped - Then whiskey or other strong liquors served to the women & a good merry social chat

No books for first years after settlement John Pitman the parish doctor Physician not infrequently would show his sick patients. Such persons depended on their own family mostly this the day & at night some one or two neighbors came in & watched the sickly to get watchers

The greater call for others, than without any premeditated plan  
of lots and streets I laid out lots <sup>from time to time</sup> in the order of my allotments unind-  
-cated by the letters - In size and price I followed the plan of Judge P  
giving <sup>contracts to</sup> all the time of payment asked as a condition of improvement  
I hadly recollect selling a lot for cash <sup>in 1840</sup> for 7 years after I commenced  
selling lots - Some I sold to mechanics for labor or better

Had I anticipitated the sale of so many lots I should have adopted  
a different plan of larger lots wider and more regular streets and a  
public square, but I followed the plan of my predecessor <sup>in my impudence & want of foresight</sup> until  
it was too late to profit by my own experience and the observation of  
other villages required laid out before settlement the same difficulty  
has arisen in many villages of the county of Cape perhaps May  
ville <sup>and Denmark</sup> which were laid out ~~by the State Co. before settlement~~  
before Mr and Mrs W Chandler also first contracted for the same for the land  
south of the Deptford road on the center 1/3 of lot 26 north of the water power land  
sale, came to Jamestown a poor young man from Virginia but most judiciously  
did he and his partner John W Winsor fulfill their contract & did their full  
share in promoting the growth of the East part of the village - Woodley W Chand-  
ler was a most worthy citizen, an honorable man & when in feeble health  
he did much to improve the land he & Mr Winsor purchased of me and  
in selling <sup>& improving</sup> the lots they laid out - Mr Chandler retired onto a farm at least and  
although in waning health he showed much taste in <sup>in building a fine school house outback of his & laying out farming</sup> improving his farm as he best  
done his lots and land while in Jamestown - A kind hearted good neighbor and  
enterprising citizen always ready to aid in public improvements - I gave  
his name to one of the streets I laid out and he will be desired that monument.  
He died at Lewist after a long and tedious decline unwisely respected by all





and that I could see my entire water <sup>at a low rate</sup> on condition it should be improved without unnecessary delay with such machinery as most wanted and would give employment to many men - I soon sold the entire water power <sup>on July 1st 1823</sup> and about 8 acres of land besides that overflowed by the creation of the dam for about \$1,000. I retained the title in my own hands until water power was improved - I doubt whether <sup>a portion of the</sup> the privilege could now be purchased for a turning - lot for what I sold the whole - The fall I purchased I cleared land where the collegiate school now stands where I created <sup>my</sup> a house and outbuildings. I also cleared these in jobs three pieces of land in 1823. I spent there and that from James Street to Pine <sup>was here</sup> Street over the gaps that had not been previously opened - <sup>mainly at my own expense</sup> I also commenced clearing on the south side of the outlet one job where Judge Hazlet resides, another south east of it also one on the south end of the lot joining Dr. Hazlet's <sup>land</sup> - I generally paid from \$5 to 10% an acre for clearing & fencing and the pine timber on the land cleared and fenced -

CHUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



After residing in Jonestown a year without <sup>the</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>having a better offer</sup> ~~been~~ any more land cleared than when I went there, and Judge  
Pendergast declining to sell any land I determined ~~and~~ <sup>to</sup> ~~purchase~~  
~~for a house of wood and no pasture for a horse or a cow to be obtained~~  
I applied to the Holland Company agent at Moyville, <sup>in 1816</sup> to purchase  
the West third of Lot 26 north the outlet next to Judge Pendergast containing  
about 120 acres. The agent informed it was a part of the Rebore which  
included Lots 25 & 26 both sides of the outlet between Jonestown & Deerperville  
and that he was not authorized to sell, but when it should come into market I  
might depend on having it. He shook his head with regret that he was not then  
able to sell it to me. I presumed it would come into market & I should obtain it  
and I rested on that <sup>promise</sup> ~~promise~~  
As I visited Moyville from time to time I occasionally saw the agent who recited  
his statement with a promise of purchase whenever it should be for sale &  
In the fall of 1817 after the Cotton factory building was sold & Judge Pendergast  
the whole in his hands again & without any apparent disposition to in-  
crease his estates except in the manufacture of boards and without any  
disposition to sell any land except in lots, I felt more anxious than  
then ever to obtain some land besides two Valley lots but still  
I did not then understand as I now do the nature of those reservations. At the time  
passed along I became convinced that unless a new state of things was  
brought about the village was not destined to materially advance or  
improve in business - The entire water power of the whole district  
was employed in the <sup>in what 2 factories saw mills & a carding machine & cloth & paper mills</sup> ~~manufacture~~ of boards without any profit and  
at a sacrifice of the timber and no capitalists were coming into the village  
our village grew slowly and by emigration of some worthy men but  
without much capital & Judge Pendergast not only owned most of the village but  
was probably with more capital than all the inhabitants of his village. In  
this state of things I made up my mind mentally that unless I could suc-  
ceed in my contemplated purchase and the Rebore could be settled I would  
leave the place. For obvious reasons I did not make known my calculations but I  
said by horse & that first by contract to Col. C. R. Harvey & collecting my debts  
into lumber. In 1820 I saw my lumber stored in the Ohio River & sent it at Cincinnati  
and Louisville. After selling my lumber I went to the US land sale  
at Brookville and purchased <sup>a number of lots of</sup> land adjoining Indianapolis <sup>& near it</sup> the new seat of Govern-  
ment of the State of Indiana. It was <sup>then</sup> ~~was~~ a wilderness but a beautiful country  
to which I determined to remove as soon as Indiana for soon as the new seat of Government should  
be improved and become a comfortable place for a residence as I <sup>resided in a good long</sup> ~~continued to live~~  
in a hind house in Jonestown. I continued to collect in my debts into lumber  
& gradually closed up my business there. Indianapolis was growing and had fair to be  
come a place of importance but my family & my own relations and my father in  
law were strongly opposed to my emigration. I was satisfied my Indianapolis purchase

was good investment even if I did not remove to it and I turned  
my attention to the north of our county for a farm which might have a pleasant  
residence and in a location where I could pursue my profession with comfort and  
and less hardship - I still held on to my plan of purchase of the reserve but with dim  
prospects from the oft repeated assurance but fact use of accomplished his dees  
time however <sup>recollection of the agent who had been</sup> Mr. Ellis <sup>the agent of the company</sup> at Batavia for about  
twenty years for some cause resigned and <sup>his keeper</sup> and Jacob Otto Esq. <sup>for four or five years</sup>  
Mr. Burt the General Agent at Philadelphia.

The matter of Reservations & some other complaints of the bill in the  
purchase having been made known to Mr. Burt, he spread a course  
of error or address to the people saying among other things there was no reserva-  
tion on the Holland Company land - I then went to Mayville and  
renewed my application & stated that from Mr. Burt's statement  
there was no reservation to which the agent objected but said the  
arrangements had been such that he then did not feel authorized to sell it then  
but expected he would be able to do so soon - With the old assurance  
I left the office well satisfied I had been deceived & immediately  
on returned home I wrote to Mr. Burt the <sup>head</sup> agent at Philadelphia  
<sup>through a post office</sup> giving a history of my application & the answer <sup>which</sup> I had received and  
asked for the purchase of the land. At this time I was negotiating with  
Forley Fuller of Ripley for his farm and residence and <sup>on the Erie Road</sup> at a recent inter-  
view I had offered him \$17 an acre & he asked \$18 which I declined  
but he asked me if I should come to come to Jamestown in 10 days if I would  
would take the farm at \$17 <sup>50</sup> an acre - To which I replied I would if I  
did not in the mean time purchase other property - I soon received a letter  
from Mr. Burt, through the office at Batavia declaring he had never  
authorized a reservation since the opening for sale of the Holland Company land for sale  
and if the agent did not sell it to me, to apply to Mr. Otto who would act.  
I soon received notice from the agent at Mayville that I could have  
the land - I visited Mayville where the agent informed me I could  
now have the land I had so long <sup>been</sup> negotiated for. I then asked him the price which he laid  
before me the price of the reservation and marked the price of the land  
near to the Village at \$11 an acre & the reserve at \$6 <sup>60</sup> an acre I told  
him <sup>by letter</sup> I had only applied for the land near to the Village but he said he would  
not decide the reservation - I then told him the price was unprecedented in  
their land sales in Chautauque County & it finally led to some alter-  
cations between us, & I left his office <sup>intending to go to Batavia</sup> but while leaving he requested me to call in  
again and I soon <sup>returned</sup> where he seemed more anxious to sell  
and after agreeing on terms of payment, I took articles for the reservation  
the 22<sup>d</sup> September 1822. Had I not applied to Mr. Burt or had Mr. Ellis  
the agent at Batavia I should not <sup>have</sup> obtained the land I now <sup>own</sup> <sup>the land</sup>

Mr. Fuller from Ripley called to assist of my offer there in to his respect I informed him of my purchase of the reserve

In 1816 The erection of the Cotton factory building  
 the excavation of the factory Canal and the arrival money  
 settlers in the country gave much hope - In the fall the first  
 installment of cotton machinery arrived <sup>with Lewis Insall</sup> from Okego County and  
 was stored in the unfinished <sup>building</sup> - Judge P Still declined to sell any land ex-  
 cept in village lots or to sell or lease any water power -  
 In 1816 I applied to the H L Crary agent at Mayville to purchase  
 what 26 adjoining the village - The agent informed me it was  
Reserved land and he had no power to sell which he regretted but  
 as soon as it was for sale I ~~because~~ might rely on having the first  
 refusal - With this promise I relied on ~~eventually~~ soon obtaining the land.  
 Then W Horsey an able machinist was induced to come from W  
 ment to assist in getting the machinery in operation -

1817 opened and the builder of the factory building called loudly for  
 but the balance of his pay & the first installment of cotton machinery  
 that had been delivered was not wholly paid for - Mr Horsey instead  
 of being employed about the new factory machinery found no employ-  
 ment in it and opened a blacksmith shop in the E side of Pine Street  
 and commenced work there I left Dix bought a suit against the factory  
 company and the latter part of the summer & the factory and every thing  
 appertaining with all its rights of water power <sup>was</sup> sold at Sheriff's sale &  
 bid in by Judge P without any opposition - The machinery & shop was  
 sold by the machinist who furnished it was taken to Denmark & put into  
 a building on Canadaway Creek - Thus passed away 1817 under dis-  
 couragements in the village - We had a few citizens but no  
 capitalists 1818 passed in much the same way no material im-  
 provements except Mr Hyatt's Cider & Cattle Chopping - no more land  
 cleared on Pendergost's tract nor no movement new buildings

As I visited Mayville from time to time I occasionally called at  
 the land office about the reserve and had the same answer as in my  
 original application -

In 1819 Selos Jeffery built his new stone corner main road street in  
 good style on a strong foundation and finished with all the improvements  
 in good style and a few small houses were built <sup>in 1818 & 1819</sup> and finished many  
 when was Royal Keep on the west side of main - Still no more land cleared  
 and the little village was surrounded by a dense forest no orchards or fruit  
 gardens or any thing to ornament the village and the factory build-  
 ding stood either as a monument of the misjudgment of its projectors <sup>or</sup> <sup>as</sup> <sup>monument</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>misjudgment</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>projectors</sup> <sup>than</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>projectors</sup>  
 doing any like of its ever being put in operation - The old dwelling building <sup>was</sup> <sup>in</sup> <sup>ruins</sup>  
 unfinished and weather beaten without paint and most of its windows closed  
 with rough boards and too cold with no fire place and without plastering <sup>was</sup> <sup>not</sup> <sup>able</sup>  
 despatching to hold a school or meetings comfortably in the winter seasons  
 nor could a majority vote be obtained to build a finished school house for school meet-  
 ings. Under all the circumstances I felt discouraged about such an improve-  
 ment of the village as I had anticipated and determined to dispose of the little property I  
 had in the village and remove elsewhere in due time although I did not make  
 known

... The entire water power of the rapids was devoted  
to mills except 2 custom grist mills and a lading machine &  
cloth dressing factory - In 1820 I sold my house and lot by contract  
to Col Horsey to receive boards lumber in payment. I also collected  
my debts in lumber as far as consistent for cash was almost out of  
the question in collecting - As an evidence of the unprofitable-  
ness of lumber, <sup>unassisted</sup> boards were selling for \$2 a thousand and shingles at 50 cts  
a thousand. The manufacturing cut <sup>where they</sup> ~~that~~ thence the standing pine timber  
was sacrificed, although Judge employed his mills mostly in sawing  
logs for ~~the~~ <sup>one</sup> half of the boards. In 1820 having collected all  
the lumber I could on debts I sold and sent it to Cincinnati and  
Savannah and having disposed of it I went to Brookville Ind & attended  
the united land sales for the lands ~~at~~ around the new seat of govern-  
ment Indianapolis then a wilderness. I purchased a number of  
tracts of land adjoining the new seat of government with vicinity <sup>and</sup>  
determined to remove there in due time - Still I found my relatives  
and folks in low spirits opposed to my removal to Indiana  
I determined to purchase no more property in the village and for  
some 2 years I lived in rented houses but still hoping I might  
obtain the reserve or that it would go into hands that would  
bring the water power into use & the land in parcels to sell  
in date sales. <sup>give an impulse to the village</sup> Owing to the feelings of my relatives I now  
my mind I would ~~remove~~ <sup>invest</sup> my Indianapolis lands  
as an investment and remove into the Free Red in the  
north part of the county & As an evidence of the want of  
property in the village in 1821 a school society was called  
in the village directed to build a district school house  
that should be comfortable for schools & meetings. on

Geer Symonds children  
and Mrs. Abbott's land in  
Springfield

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Bound Newspapers Chart Copy

1 Book  
will bound  
Chautauqua Gazette, Currier, Chautauque  
Peoples Gazette Scattering from 1817 to 1830  
Chautauque Eagle Scattering

1 Book will bound  
Jamestown Journal 1826, 1827, 1828, 1829, 1830 (Deficiencies)  
Chautauqua Republican 1829 to 1833 (Deficiency)  
Republican Banner 1833 - Scattering specimens of  
Westfield Advocate, Panama Herald, Liberty Star, Irving  
Democrat, Jamestown Herald, Ellington Herald.

1 Book  
Chautauqua Republican by m Bates Complete  
1838 Somerton & printers file

Jamestown Journal

1 Book  
1826 to 1840 duplicates & scattering Journals

- 1 Book - 1831, 1832, 1833, 1834
- " - 1835, 1836, 1837, 1838
- " - 1839, 1840, 1841, 1842
- " - 1843, 1844, 1845, 1846
- " - 1847, 1848, 1849, 1850
- " - 1851, 1852, 1853, 1854
- " - 1855, 1856, 1857, 1858, 1859, 1860

I have 1861 to 1870 inclusive tied in bundles years separate & packed in a box - The bound volumes on shelves not packed

Mayville Sentinels bound

- 1834, 1835, 1836, 1837, 1838,
- 1839, 1840, 1842, 1843, 1844,
- 1845, 1846, 1847, 1848, 1849,
- 1850, 1851, 1852, 1853

Dunkirk Beacon

- Bound - 1835, 1836, 1837, 1838, 1839, 1841
- 1842, 1843, 1844, 1845,

Chautauqua Journal Dunkirk

- 1850, 1851, 1852, 1853, 1854

Jamestown Papers

Liberty Prefs Jamestown

- 1845, 1846

Northern Citizen 1848, 1849, 1850, 1851, 1852, 1853.

Chautauqua Democrat bound

- 1853, 1854, 1855,
  - 1856, 1857, 1858, 1859, 1860
- has since 1861  
in bundles not bound  
and are 1/2 bound

Letter from Sharpville  
urging me to have delegates  
sent to Convention etc.

1836

Hon. E. P. Coote

P. M.  
Amestown

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

4 different papers same Bound in 1 Volume

Northern Citizen Albany in 1841 some A.D. of M. Henry Webster

1 Book Western Farmer Westfield NY 1835-6

Pantheon Do 1830-1

Joel's Fredonia 1845

1 Book Vanderburen Times 1836-7

Westfield Messenger 1841 to 1850 some deficiencies

Fredonia Express scattered

Warren Papers containing Wetmore's Hist. Warren County

Fredonia Courier

1 Book 1830, 1831, 1832, 1833, nearly complete

1834, 1835, 1836, 1837

1838, 1839, 1840,

1841, 1842,

1843, 1844,

1845, 1846, 1847

1849, 1848, 1850

1852, 1853, 1854

1855-1856 (1857) they are

Since the bound volumes tied up in volumes & boxed up to to 1870 inclusive

The Independent

Bound  
Evangelist 1846, 1847, 1848  
Independent 1848, 1849, 1850

1851 to 1851 inclusive

1851, 1852, 1853, 1854, 1855

National End Bound

1847, 1848, 1849, 1850, 1851

1852, 1853, 1854, 1855



Waits Esqr - Feby 19-27

Lamington N.C. - Paid 18<sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>  
Feb. 20th

Hon. Elias J. Foose

Albany

COPYRIGHT HAUTAQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Inventory of 2<sup>d</sup> Series  
Massachusetts Bonds  
in Chautauque County

504  
Feb  
1874

Very  
Yours  
E. J. Foose

Holland and Company with John McAlahan  
from Land Office in Batavia. Dated May 1853

Article of agreement (in manuscript in Judge Stevens handwriting)  
dated 12<sup>th</sup> day of May 1803 between Melkerin Wellink & others  
by Joseph Ellicott their attorney and John McAlahan

Whereas

Said John McAlahan proposes to purchase a certain tract in  
Genesee County containing 2,2014 acs being township N<sup>o</sup>. 4 in  
the 14 Range & consideration of one dollar paid & future con-  
ditions to be fulfilled & payments made - land at \$2.50 cents per acre  
amounting to \$55,035 to be paid as follows \$1035 upon executing the  
contract and the remaining \$54,000. in 8 payments or installments  
as follows - \$3,000 on or before 1<sup>st</sup> July 1806 with 3780 \$ by one year  
interest \$4,000 the 2<sup>nd</sup> installment 1<sup>st</sup> July 1807 with 3570 by one year  
interest on fifty one thousand dollars at 7 per cent. 3<sup>rd</sup> installment \$5,000 1<sup>st</sup>  
July 1808 with 3290 one year interest & on 47,000. - \$6,000 4<sup>th</sup> instalment  
1<sup>st</sup> July 1809 & 2940 interest

1<sup>st</sup> July 1810 \$8,000 5<sup>th</sup> instalment & \$2520 interest in all \$10,520.

" " 1811 8000.6 " " 1960 " " 9960

" " 1812 10,000 7 " " 1400 " " " 11,400

" " 1813 10,000 8 " " 700 " " " 10,700

10 per cent to be deducted on all payments of principal when  
actually made this not to apply to interest

If McAlahan should be desirous to deed to actual settlers land sold  
entirely or from may have deed by furnishing regular survey at his own  
expense & paying \$275 cents acre & the amount to be credited on said  
McAlahan's contract & deed made to the settlers & entitled to go on  
next & hereunto done for McAlahan on this contract

Hol Co. consented that to enable deede to pay the installments  
as above specified they were to accept of bonds & mortgages such  
that said deede might receive from his billers in payment  
two or three purchase money provided said bonds & mortgages  
were approved & would then cause good & sufficient deeds  
to be executed to said party of 2<sup>d</sup> part for any lot he chose to sell  
the bond & mortgage being <sup>on interest</sup> regularly assigned to the company  
& the sum equal to original purchase money to be immediately  
credited on this agreement but no discount of 10 per cent to be made  
on these B & all payments - All interest on such B & all before 1805 to  
to be credited to deede - No land to be deeded for less than  $\frac{1}{2}$  a lot  
of a mile square - deede <sup>might</sup> refuse B & all if deemed insufficient security for  
the land - deede was to be at expense of all B & all acknowledge  
to be stopment then fully executed to party of first part

Scaled & delivered in  
presence of  
James W. Stearns }  
Benj. Ellicott }

Signed by  
Mr. Ellicott as  
Secretary  
John de la Harpe

names now torn off

Reprinted Printed 1804 this wrote in red ink

H. L. Company to Jomelle Mahan. Contract.  
7<sup>th</sup> July 1803

Contracted for 4074 acres part of town 3 in the 15 Range  
Commencing on the shore of Lake Erie at the N.E. Corner  
of said township; thence South on the line on S. 14 R. 14 P. 15  
199 chains 6 links to a stone, thence South 62<sup>45</sup> but  
251 chains 50 links to a stone, thence North 181 chains 73 links  
to a stone on the shore of Lake Erie thence along shore to Lake  
Erie

as follows \$509<sup>25</sup> 7<sup>th</sup> July next with lawful interest & the re-  
maining sum of \$9166<sup>50</sup> cents in 8 equal yearly payments  
The first of said installments & annual payments of interest com-  
mence 7<sup>th</sup> July 1806

If the land should on or before 1<sup>st</sup> July 1805 exist or  
course to be created a said tract - Eight messuages fit for the habitation of man  
not less than 18 feet square each and shall cause a family to live  
or reside therein in each of said messuages for three years next ensuing &  
shall on or before 7<sup>th</sup> July 1805 clear & fence or cause the same  
to be done not less than 6 acres of said tract <sup>contiguous</sup> to each of said messuages.  
These latter duties performed interest for two years to be relinquished

\$509<sup>25</sup> unpaid on date of contract

June 8 1805 \$449<sup>37</sup> being 10 years 11 mo interest \$509<sup>25</sup>

H. L. Co. with Thos McClelland

(Article the recorder printed from duly executed)

date 31 dec 1803. for Lot 14, 6 Town 12 Range  
Containing 359 acres - Consideration \$807 <sup>75</sup> to be paid

as follows \$807 <sup>75</sup> on the 17 April 1805 & the remaining term  
of \$7,279 in 8 installments

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD NY 2012

H. L. Company &  
Thos McClelland  
Contractors & also  
Thos McClelland

Under the laws of June 1807

A census of the electors of the town of Cheateau George  
1807, then embracing the whole of the present County.

It should be borne in mind that under their existing  
constitution of the State, property qualifications were  
required of all electors

Schedulae from Justus Hinman's district.

Heads of Families Electors of the town value of £20 and under £100  
value of £100 and under £100 Electors electors a  
town value of \$40

- Hinman Justus 1
- Hart Oziabon 2
- Holmes Orsamus 2
- Inson 1
- Seaman Seley 1
- Scott Rufus 1
- Stebbins Hazard 1
- Gould Daniel 2
- William 1
- Gear Samueel 1
- Griswold Jared 1
- Perry Benjamin 2
- Perry Samueel 2
- Prior John 1
- Patterson Pyron 1
- Orton Abigail 1
- Philo 1
- Johnson Linnal 1
- Burkham Eliphaz 1
- Belcher John 1
- Burns Benjamin 1

(Died June 1854 Frederick Connor)  
may be the Hazard's son  
177

2

COPYRIGHT © ALTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

1801  
This may certify that John William has made  
a true return of the above names in his district of the town

Benett Benjamin	1
Quaker Joseph	1
Mashfield	1
James Daniel	1
Dickson Daniel	1
Burges Richard	1
Cooky David	1
Cole Seth	1
Washing Gette	1
Goel Daniel	1
Corn Luke	1
Cole Nathan	1
James John	15
Risley Sigmund	2
Dean Silvia	1
Fish Hogdon	1
James Hogdon	1
Joe Rice	1
Walter William	1
Jonathan	1
Moore	1
Francis	1
Walter John	1
William Richard	1

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Chautauque ~~Sworn~~ ~~Held~~ ~~at~~ ~~the~~ ~~House~~ ~~of~~ ~~Representatives~~ ~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~State~~ ~~of~~ ~~New~~ ~~York~~  
 Sworn ~~Held~~ ~~at~~ ~~the~~ ~~House~~ ~~of~~ ~~Representatives~~ ~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~State~~ ~~of~~ ~~New~~ ~~York~~  
 15 day of October 1807  
 Before me  
 David Eason J.P.

Returns from Alexander Martin of his District

Low Mingeon	1	
George Whitehill	1	
Abraham Frederic	2	
Samuel Harrison	2	
Laughlin McNeil	1	He died in Jan'y 1813 Aged 60. Buried at Poughkeepsie
Williams Mc Bride	1	
William Crossgrove	1	
Alexander Lockhart	1	
Morris Spears	1	
Josiah Fairbrother	1	
Nathan Wessner	1	
Asa Spears	1	
Ebenzer Babcock	2	
Oliver Loomis	1	
Thomas Pendergast	1	
Henry Day	1	
William Alexander	1	
Arthur Bell	1	
David Eason	1	
Thomas McClintock	1	
John Lyons	1	
Peter Kane	1	

WESTFIELD COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



John Price : 1  
 James Dunn : 1  
 Nathan Fay  
 Jacob George  
 John De Grave  
 Stephen Dull 1  
 John Mc Mahan : 1  
 James Mc Mahan : 1  
 Nicholas George  
 James Pariners  
 Alexander & Martin 1

The census was taken by two  
 persons appointed by the town  
 officers for the two districts into  
 which they had divided the  
 town and which is heretofore  
 1. substantially in the form of the  
 1. present appendix  
 2

I hereby certify that this is a true census of the  
 freehold electors within the bounds I was appointed to  
 take according to the best of my ~~ability~~ knowledge & belief  
 sworn & subscribed before  
 me the 18 day of June 1807  
 John Mc Mahan J.P.

The preceding census of the duly qualified electors <sup>of the town of Westfield</sup> 57 <sup>years</sup>  
 since ~~was~~ <sup>was first</sup> and a careful examination will show  
 that the electors of time taking the census must in <sup>very</sup> any  
 cases have made a very liberal construction of the kind of free  
 hold qualifications required by the constitution, for very  
 few at that date had taken deeds of land but held their lands  
 under "Articles" or contract to purchase of the Holland Land Company

You suggested in our interview yesterday that you should be pleased to have us examine the "Land Tariff" made by Messrs Redfield & Co with that we understood you as proposing to adopt that tariff, but that its principles might have some influence in fixing upon your terms of business with the Chautauque letters.

After an attentive perusal of the "Land Tariff" to which allusion has been made we are constrained to say that such terms to those shown we represent would be the height of injustice. If we understand the tariff it is an addition of about 33 percent to the principal of the debt with the addition of the whole of the interest. The time of payment (10 years) is an ellusive boon but in most cases an <sup>destructive</sup> ellusive boon to the settler & by no means an equivalent for the enhanced price.

Again if the principle of the tariff should be admitted to be just to the territory for which it is made the depreciation of the soil, location, improvements of the country is entirely dissimilar. The country of Genesee, Orleans, Niagara &c have been much ~~less~~ settled than their differences of products & facilities for raising money <sup>either by selling out their improvements or realizing their value</sup> or from the product of the soil under payments must exist in the Genesee country than in Chautauque.

With the exception of the lands along the shore of Lake Erie in the vicinity of bill eyes in proved lands <sup>of which</sup> in the West (near) districts <sup>of Genesee county</sup> will sell for 20 to 50 \$ per acre with similar improvements will not sell in Chautauque higher than for 10 to 20 \$ per acre. The value of <sup>the</sup> land similarly situated as to improvements are entirely dissimilar or as to their intrinsic value the price which they will command your own experience & knowledge of the

Of the Western Country must have convinced you that  
no agricultural country afford so <sup>great &</sup> certain facilities for raising  
money as the wheat growing districts - The facilities for rais-  
ing money are as different as in the two sections of Country,  
as the prices of soil to which allusion has been made  
Again if there is to be one addition to the price of the land  
held under contract we can see no just reason in the  
principles of additions adopted in the tariff

The purchase has been voluntarily made with a  
full knowledge of the situation of the Country & nature  
of the contracts as they exist - We hope the terms which you  
may prescribe to the letters will be such as are just and  
equitable to ~~the letters~~ <sup>them</sup> and that they will be made known with  
as little delay as may be & at a price not higher than  
you suggested yesterday

In conclusion we give it as our opinion  
that the people of Vermont will now timely sub-  
mit to a tariff similar to the one to which allusion has  
been made - If they should, it would be a submission to  
the height of injustice & show a want of the spirit of freedom  
embodying their character as citizens of ~~this country~~ <sup>an</sup>  
intelligent community -

In behalf of Delegation  
E. J. Fote Chairman

In all cases of Articles which have Expired since the 1<sup>st</sup> of January 1835, or which may hereafter Expire a resale may be made and a new Contract may be issued payable in ten Annual instalments with ~~with~~ interest Annually on the following terms (1/8 of the purchase Money paid down)

1<sup>st</sup> In all cases when the Amount due on the Old Contract is less than three dollars on the Acre an advance of one dollar upon the Acre to be charged

2<sup>d</sup> When the Amt is over \$3. per acre and less than \$5. an advance of one dollar & fifty cents per acre is to be charged

3<sup>d</sup> When the Amount is over \$5. and less than \$8. Two dollars per acre is to be added

4<sup>th</sup> When the Amt is over \$8. per acre an advance of \$3. per Acre is to be charged

5<sup>th</sup> Contracts which have been forfeited in consequence of Noncompliance with the notices to be considered as Expired articles

6<sup>th</sup> Any Settler holding under an article Expired since the 1<sup>st</sup> of January last may be permitted to pay up and take a Deed on the payment of \$- per acre

7<sup>th</sup> In all cases when the land is worth twice the Amt of Purchase Money a Deed may be given a Bond & Mortgage taken instead of an article on the above terms

8<sup>th</sup> Any Settler may surrender his article before it Expires & take a new Contract on the above terms

9<sup>th</sup> These terms are for the benefit of actual settlers  
& not to be extended to those who hold contracts  
pledged for the payments of debts or who have  
purchased them for speculation But all such persons  
will be requested to pay the full value of the land

10<sup>th</sup> In case any settler whose article has expired since  
the first of January last or whose article shall  
hereafter expire shall neglect to take a new article  
upon the above terms for the space of six months  
the land to be resold for a sum not less than the value  
of said

11<sup>th</sup> No advance to be charged upon lands held by  
widows or Orphan children

12<sup>th</sup> No wild land or other land not heretofore  
articles or any of that class of expired articles  
purchased as wild lands at \$2. per acre or  
the Lots in Batavia and Buffalo to be sold  
until the same have been appraised and  
a price fixed by the proprietors

James Bond Office  
Treasr. & Register  
1800

AMERICAN SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Put a meeting of the inhabitants of  
West Hinsdale on the 11<sup>th</sup> of Nov 1833  
to take in to consideration the proceedings  
of the Holland Land Company towards  
the letters

On motion after mature deliberation  
Peter Bush was called to the chair  
and Samuel Searl was chosen Secy

On motion of ~~John~~ Pitcher it was resolved  
that we concur in the proceedings of the  
James Town meeting

Resolved that we send two delegates to  
the General Convention

It was further resolved that Abner  
Smith and Peter Bush be delegates to  
attend said convention

Resolved that the proceedings of this meeting  
be reported to the corresponding committee  
of James Town

Resolved that the proceedings of the meeting be  
signed by the Chairman & secretary

Peter Bush Ch

Samuel Searl Secy

Proceedings of the  
West Hinsdale  
Delegate  
Meeting  
Nov 11 - 1833

---

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Judge McCall - Amherst

Washford Nov: 28 - 1833

Dear Sir

I feel not a little gratified at the result of the late election in the several counties in this Senate District - and hope by the next term masonry will be extended

we feel not a little disturbed here at the result of the late Law taxing debts due to the U. S. Co - the consequences will be oppressive to the poor man while it relieves the burthens of those who are not in debt to them - it will drive away many good citizens - whose industry is as important as an others cash -

How does it suit your country and your self - can anything be done if so what - shall be the course to be pursued - will not the courtis interested petition for the repeal of the act which must bear on many individuals very hard.

we shall present our grievances to the legislature if no others will do



you undoubtedly know the course pursued by  
agents of the Company to make the debtors pay  
the taxes - please to give me your views of the  
subject - and if you consider the operation of  
this law is & Co - will you not use your influence  
to stir up the people to do some thing to prevent  
the evil threatened

An other law (equally and per-  
haps more fatal to the prosperity of the state  
I mean the act to abolish imprisonment for  
debt) ought to be repealed it only serves to pro-  
tect rogues while the honest man is injured by  
its effects - how is it collected with you & your  
people in Chatauga County

please answer the above queries and  
oblige your humble

Friend

James McCall

Wm. C. F. Foot

Judge McCall an excellent man but do not agree with him on  
the above questions. I think him honestly mistaken - E. J. Foote

Rushford M. Lee J. McCall P. Mc  
Nov 30

Hon. E. J. Foot

Janus Town -  
Chattanooga County  
Ar. Y.

COPYRIGHT CHATTAUGUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

The full ball

on last question &

from information  
Nov 24-1833

6. Valley Oct 30 1835

To the Hon. Board of Canal Commissioners

The Policy of the State is to go forward with the system of internal improvements. It cannot and ought not to be arrested.

All we ought to desire is to pursue a prudent at the same time a liberal course.

The stupendous project of enlarging the Erie Canal which on its very enter appropiation will afford additional arguments for constructing lateral canals and the People will never be satisfied

to have so large an amount expended through the Canal route unless those situations far removed from it are also accommodated.

It would not be very surprising if it should be deemed advisable to continue the Erie Canal to diminish

with a view of getting above the ice in the spring. Such a Canal in connection with your long projected project would

It appears quite well

Have you & your County given up  
the Cornwago Canal -  
if its in practicable it would  
certainly be preferable to some other  
canals that have been used upon  
the Legislature -

I believe the Olean & Rochester  
canals will shortly be authorized &  
I wish to see the Cornwago if it is  
practicable.

The two projects are not incon-  
sistent or at variance in the least  
other -

It appears to me that your  
County should not rest but should  
be prepared to use your claims as  
strongly as other parts of the State -

It is not improbable that  
Buffalo might oppose carrying the  
canal to Dunkirk, but Buffalo  
will support the Cornwago canal

with all its energies and perhaps would  
not object to making a cut to Dunkirk.

I hope to find your Senate District  
with us this Election -

If you should deem it advisable  
to circulate Petitions they should be in  
Albany as early as others for other Canals -

Certainly your route should be accu-  
rately surveyed -

I have written Brown and requested  
him to call on you and look over this  
Party - scroll

I shall be happy to hear from  
you - Yours with esteem

Wm Alexander

Judge Foster

The Lumbermans Bank I suppose will  
make a dividend the 1st Nov  
will you request Shepard to for-  
ward mine by draft on an Albany  
Bank?

Handwritten notes on the left side of the page, including the word "Laid" at the bottom left.

Handwritten notes in the center of the page, including the word "Chal" and "T. J. Fote Esq".

Handwritten notes on the right side of the page, including the phrase "John B. Corvally" and "of the village of 1835".

Copyright notice: "COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, FIELDS, N.Y. 2012"

In the year ~~I began laying out building lots opposite~~

In 1823 I sold by contract the mill site on the outlet at the lower end of the village <sup>on condition that all the water power should be improved.</sup> with a few acres of land for about \$500 for I was not able to <sup>buy for the lot</sup> improve the water power & had to see it done - I also contracted to sell <sup>to various persons</sup> all of my interest in the center 1/3 of lot 26 (H L C survey). In 1823 the dam and a saw mill was built at the lower end of the village on my purchase. The saw mill located on the shore at the north end of the dam & in the year a two story building for a window sash factory was erected & put in operation on the north side of the outlet just below the saw mill & in a part of the print & roller factory of Daniel Hoeylin the east side of the street still below the sash factory was erected for a carding machine & cloth draping business - In a building for the manufacture of pots, tubs & other wooden hollow ware was erected by <sup>on an island near the north</sup> shore of the outlet just below the dam - A small tannery at the south end of the dam was erected in <sup>& another on</sup> the east side of the street in <sup>& Bred's cabinet factory by</sup> Mrs + J G Bred in <sup>& the chair factory still further south</sup> in 1840. - The saw mill was rebuilt in 1841 & the carding & cloth draping establishment was enlarged & finally converted into a woolen factory about 1839 -

In the year 1830 I began laying out building lots opposite my dairy house & surveyed in that year <sup>in 1831</sup> allotment A - There were at that time two roads across my land Foot's Street & Chandler's Street to which I <sup>of necessity</sup> <sup>conformed my survey</sup> - When I commenced laying out building lots <sup>at the</sup> <sup>Penry</sup> <sup>at home</sup> other ridiculed this project as visionary for the village would extend <sup>only</sup> toward the stars but <sup>the</sup> <sup>time</sup> <sup>has</sup> <sup>shown</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>results</sup>

E. J. Footes Sale  
of lands & village  
- lots

THIS IS TO CERTIFY,

That

by

Is a Member for Life of the

CHAUTAUQUE COUNTY BIBLE SOCIETY,

AUXILIARY TO THE

AMERICAN BIBLE SOCIETY.

In behalf of the Society,

President.

Secretary.

Chautauque County, New York.

*[Handwritten text, partially obscured and upside down]*  
...most complete of ...  
...the ... of my ...  
...form ...  
...the territory ...  
...copy ...  
...habitant ...  
...near ...

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



# Westfield

Presb. Ch.

In the year 1808, a church was formed within the present limits of Westfield, <sup>this was the first church organized church in the Co.</sup> the Rev. John Lindsley officiating. It was called Chautauque Church, being thus in the town of Chautauque, which included the whole western part of the Co.; Pompey having been formed the same year in Branch of the same year and embracing the west remainder of the county. The ch. was attached to the Pres. of Erie. ~~It was~~ ~~for several of~~ ~~its records~~ having been lost, little is known of history in ~~some~~ ~~known~~ can be obtained. It seems to have early fallen into a state begun to decline, until it had little more than a nominal existence.

On June 25, 1817, ~~was formed~~ <sup>was formed</sup> there in the town of Portland, ~~was formed~~ ~~the~~ ~~first~~ ~~and~~ ~~called~~ a religious society was formed, in pursuance of a general law of the state, and called the "First Pres. Society" of the fourth town of the 14th Range in the County of Chaut. Elders Stone and James Montgomery, Nathl. ~~Wain~~, David Higgins, Wm. M. Riddell and Jonathan Harmon were elected Trustees; Jonathan Cass, Clerk. Calvin E. Mowbray Treas.; Fern Demery, Collector. The members resided in both the towns of Portland & Ripley.

On the 7th of Nov. 1817, a new organization of the ch. took place. There had long been a regular session; for we find in the minutes of the meeting, that "a session was found consisting of Rev. Johnsten Eaton, Rev. Phineas Camp, James Montgomery, and Thomas Robinson. In their minutes they refer to the <sup>present</sup> condition of this church, as having been "but poorly & irregularly supplied with preaching," and "become worse than extinct," and add: "God having lately in a remarkable manner, revived his work within its bounds, it was deemed expedient to examine into its state, and if found to have a real existence, to correct and restore its discipline." <sup>was probably</sup>

And ~~in~~ ~~their~~ ~~minutes~~ the following: "The following is copied from their minutes: 'Having underruned after much deliberation on the subject, to correct its disorders in part, and rebuild' this Pres. Ch. in this place, we resolved to consider a united in ch. fellowship. The following original members, they being previously examined: James Monte, Sarah Monte, Sarah Mc Mahan, Eleanor Bell, Charlotte Parker, Anna Andrews. Thirteen additional members were admitted on examination and certificates, namely: Martha Roger, Hannah Peck, Paul Loomis, Sarah Stearns, Alexander Lamy, Judith Talbot, Eben Stone, Patsy Stone, John Fay, John Hibbard, Eamon Gibson, Hannah Bird. And 24 others were admitted on examination only: Robt Cochran, Sam. Schack, Michls. Day, Stephens, Mrs Bandal, Lydia Bandal, David Andrews, Anna Ha

1st Congregation in school house - Jan 6, 1818 in Pompey house  
Stats also Sept 20, 1819 and Sept 25, 1819

also, after many by whom it was continued many years and sold to Haver & Brigham, and by him to Dana Spalding, its present owner who continued the business until his death in 1872. Another was built by John and Chauncy Talcott <sup>about</sup> 1858 and is still running, & during an <sup>extended</sup> <sup>period</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>years</sup>.

About the year , Mrs. Huntley and Alpheus Babcock built a bran. ducter and conaille separator, now owned by Mrs. Huntley, Augustus Stone and Porter Holcomb. Their ~~uses~~ are in extensive use.

[Slickens & Chocoma's mill stones were manufactured from boulders taken from the <sup>side of hill</sup> Creek about 100 rods from where the mill stood, and were afterwards used in the mill built by Thomas Kidder and Nehemiah Meaton on Walnut Creek, near where the great Black Walnut tree stood.] <sup>might use by Mr. Gilmore</sup>

The first store in S. C., says ~~one~~ an early settler, was kept by Stephen Clark, on the N. side of Walnut Creek, and afterwards removed to the <sup>south</sup> <sup>side</sup>. Another, an equally ~~other~~ early settler, <sup>this no recollection of Clark's store, and believes</sup> says the first store was kept by John E. Howard, before mentioned, and Manning Case, in company. John M. Cumings at a later date, commenced trade, and continued it for a year or more. In 1828 Oliver Lee and Clark C. Swift in partnership, commenced the mercantile business and continued until <sup>ERB + Co</sup> and were succeeded by Ephraim Ballard a short time and were succeeded by H. H. Hawkins <sup>his</sup> partner.



## Silver Creek.

The land on which Silver Creek now stands was bought in 180, by Dickerson  
about 400 acres.  
and Cleveland, who remained several years, they and built a saw-mill and a  
grist mill. \* They sold the greater portion of their tract of land with the saw-mill to John C.  
Howard, reserving the grist mill with about 30 acres. ~~Howard died~~ In 1808, Mr.

H., being the only settler here, Norman Spink and Artemus Croftin came, <sup>The father of whom</sup>  
<sup>in the village,</sup> & Mr Spink died in the fall of 1873  
all died in, ~~the village~~ <sup>at the age of 84,</sup> and ~~the former~~ <sup>at the age of 85 years.</sup>

about the year 1826 Gail Eva Convis started an institution called The Farmers Store at this place  
which was then called Gayette on the south side of Walnut Creek. This store proved an entire failure  
and many of the best Farmers here were involved thereby -  
for 1828, Oliver Lee, of Westfield bought the above mentioned property. <sup>of John E. Howard</sup> <sup>there came</sup>  
them within the limits of the present corporation, about 8 or 10 families.

Nehemiah Hedlow & Tho. Kiddle, in 18, built a saw-mill and a grist-mill on  
the south part where Joseph and Nelson Andrews' saw-mill now stands, in the s. part  
of the village. \* At a later date, a saw-mill was built by (?) Hollum & John Vail, where  
afterwards, 1829 or 1830 (?) Hollum Vail and James Howard built a grist-mill,  
and a Carding Machine and Cloth Dressing establishment.

A distilling was built <sup>about</sup> in 1825 by Nath. Wallis, afterwards, another, by Stephen Clark; next, one by  
Corn. Dalrymple; and the last by O. Lee. The temperance reformation, has here, as elsewhere,  
put a period to this branch of business. in 1853

\* To the saw mill was for a time attached a large wooden Mortar and a pestle for pounding  
corn into meal coarse meal, before there was a grist mill (Describe Mortar &c.

Rev. P. Camp, missionary in this region (?) was chosen dated pastor called as pastor, Mar 2, 1819 and was installed by Eld. Puse. Sept. 8, 1819. He closed and continued until Sept 2, 1821.

Rev. Isaac Oaks employed Oct. 1822

Dec. 28, 1831, voted to endeavor to raise money to hire J. C. Parmelee to begin when he returned from Vermont.

Dec 1833 Eld. Gregory elected pastor, and remained until Oct. 1838.

J. M. Hopkins was Moderator as early as Oct 13, 1839 - closed Aug 10, 1845.

R. Tucker called Sept. 15, 1845, who died Oct. 26, 1854.

Charles F. Muzzy chosen Apr 30, 1855 - closed Nov. 12, 1861.

J. P. Fisher elected Jan 20 1852 - closed June 1864.

Dr. Chester supplied the church about a year or more - then occasionally.

R. S. Van Cleave elected Jan. 1868 - relation dissolved, Jan. 1869.

S. H. Smith elected Oct 1867 - vote to dismiss Apr. 10, 1871.

Baptist Ch. appears to have had its origin in a "Branch", so called of the Baptist Ch. of Portland. On the 16<sup>th</sup> of Sept. 1855 the members residing at and in the vicinity of (Westfield) the "Cross Roads" (now Westfield) met and organized what was then called a Branch of the Portland Church of Portland. It had the privilege of receiving and dismissing members, and to exercise discipline, except in cases of great moment. At this meeting, Joshua Tucker was chosen a deacon, and Arthur Tucker Jr. Clerk. The first members who united at and soon after the organization, ~~had the same~~ were Joshua Tucker or Joshua Jr., Henry F. Tucker, Harriet Tucker Mrs. Doxton Sally Dexton, David & Curtis Hall and soon after.

Chas. LaHalle, minister of the Ch. of Portland, presided at the meeting, and was for many years minister of the Branch as well as the parent church. ~~Sept 18~~ and independent organization was formed, ~~was called~~ the Baptist Ch. of Westfield <sup>Apr 17, 1851,</sup> view to the organization of an independent church, the members of the Branch ch. addressd. to the Church Portland parent church a letter requesting a dismission from that church, which was granted. ~~The meeting who find it the request, were~~



composed of delegates from neighboring churches, sent out Westfield, and declared it  
expedient to receive this new church into fellowship (give names) & others.

The organization of the First Baptist Society, under the general statute of the State  
was established, in 1853. The first trustees elected were John Wilson, John  
Walker, and Austin Smith.

Those who joined in the request were Joshua Tucker and J. J. Jr., Andrew Cole,  
Benj. Jordan, Wilson Peck, Abm. Parsons, Jonathan Brown, David Hall, Hazel  
Zupper, Wm. A. Peck & Calvin F. Webster. Sheldon Palmer, Midwell Leach,  
this calling Br. Wadsworth, with the views of some of them and several families - in all about 30

The number of members, each of these was more than 30

Belongs next in the sphere to Parlay St  
Meeting house had been soon in the City of Westfield till Meeting House

opened and enlarged, 1867. After Sabbath exercises. Elders: <sup>Wadsworth</sup> Wadsworth, <sup>Payton</sup> Payton, <sup>Pierley</sup> Pierley, <sup>Rathbone</sup> Rathbone, <sup>Kings</sup> Kings, <sup>Mills</sup> Mills, <sup>Walker</sup> Walker,  
Lynnan Fisher

HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, N.Y. 2012

the following: John Tinker, Jos. J. Jr. And on the 10th of May, 1831, a council composed of delegates from neighboring churches, met at Westfield, and declared it expedient to receive this new church into fellowship. (give names) & others.

The organization of the First Baptist Society, under the general statute of the State was not effected until Jan. 1853. The first trustees elected were John Wilson, John Walker, and Asa Smith.

Those who joined in the request were Joshua Tinker and J. J. Jr., Andrew Cole, Benj. Jordan, Wilson Peck, Abm. Burrows, Jos. Jonathan Brown, David Hall, Hazel Fuller, Mrs. A. Peck & Calvin F. Webster, Sheldon Palmer, Midwell Leach, Wm. W. Wadsworth, with the wives of some of them and several females - in all about 30  
The ministers. The number of members was of this was more than 30

Branch moved in the house of Joseph N. Taylor & Co  
Meeting house had been burned in the City & Street. Till Meeting House  
repaired and enlarged, 1867. After Sabbath exercises. Elders: ~~William~~  
Wadsworth, <sup>S. M.</sup> Wadsworth, Peck, ~~Walker~~, Keyes, Mills, <sup>Walker</sup> Walker  
Ephraim Fisher

WESTFIELD BAPTIST SOCIETY WESTFIELD, N.Y. 2012



Early settlers many of them christians some active

Elly Elder Edmund Jones to Elly from Monday Co (br low orange Phelps)  
formed first Baptist church in town about 1810 Dea Putman - Deacon Walker  
mostly 2<sup>d</sup> Bapt ch in County Frederica first

Westfield First sermon in the County by Rev Joseph Bodger from Elly  
2<sup>d</sup> Feb 1803 at Wm McHenry funeral - Wm McHenry 1<sup>st</sup> to Ohio & county  
he had been out before but not with family & went by way

65 - Rev Robert Patterson Pres from Penna in 1804 employed to labor at  
Westfield 1/4 time & he found church & preached until 1807 3/4 time  
Penna -

Charles Jones of Pa 1804

Joseph Lindsay Gall of 1807 labored a while in Elly 1804 returned &  
labored a while - James Pres ch <sup>of method</sup> connected with Eric Pres & church  
remained ever since & meetings kept up by owing sermons and no  
minutes. Rev John fact, the former & Eaton of Eric Pres preached  
occasionally - Rev Spencer about one a month when no minister  
later Rev Phineas Camp - Rev Camp settled in 1818  
Deacons: town donated acre of land in 1818 or 19 meeting built & occupied

1807 Rev John Spencer Robert page 25 book near his residence Ansony Dec 20 1807  
on Joseph Patterson

Frederica Elder Horace - native grieford Verm To Frederica 1808 or 9  
Past twice on husband's meeting for Miss 1808 past Miss 1809  
Judge Cushing - Dea Alston - Pres ch 1807

Helmer Sherriden in 1805 from Plymouth the major Cong ch Sherriden 1808  
2<sup>d</sup> cell in county

William Southworth Dea Wittalle cl of 1811

James town - John Forster Judge Walter Deacon Deacon Johymen  
Crain John le Mead

Christian Pioneers

Rev John Spencer Cong for the County 1807 - Ansony west

1/2 Roads - James Mc Mahon James Montgomery Bell  
Alexander in town 1804

Rev Joseph Bodger 1803 first sermon ever preached in the Wm McHenry town  
Robert Patterson 1804 - 1805 Joseph Lindsay Fact the former & Eaton

Pomfret Orsamus Holmes Judge Cushing Deacon Alston

Spamtown N.Y.  
Feb. 13th

1/4 00

Paid 95<sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>

C. S. Foster  
J. S. W. Brown Esq  
Albany

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUKU COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

A Pleasant letter  
Village in case or other  
+ drink the affection  
July 1827



## Chautauque County

In 1806 the town of Chautauque (including all of what is now Chautauque County) was set off from Batavia. Gen John W. Mahan was elected supervisor and Deacon James Montgomery (now of Westfield) town clerk. The county of Chautauque was not organized till 1811. The commissioners for locating the county site were Jonas Williams, Isaac Sutherland and Asa Ransom. The record they made of their location describes the spot in general terms, and that there ~~there~~ should be no mistake about the spot to set the Court House, they add that they have "erected a large hemlock post" on the spot.

In June 1811 the first Court of Common Pleas was held at Mayville. The judges consisted of Zattu Cushing, Matthew Prendergast, Philo Orton, Jonathan Thompson and William Alexander. David Eason (now of Westfield) was Sheriff and John E. Marshall clerk.

The first white resident in Chautauque County was Amos Sottle. He resided near the mouth of Cattaraugus creek in 1798.

which was three years before the Holland Land Company opened an office for the sale of land.

Col James McMahan from Northumberland County, Pennsylvania is ~~was~~ said to have been the pioneer purchaser of the Holland Company. He took a contract in 1802 for the 4<sup>th</sup> Township in the 14<sup>th</sup> Range, which is now the town of Westfield. His location was afterwards transferred to the 3<sup>rd</sup> Township in the 15<sup>th</sup> Range, (now town of Ripley) where he purchased several thousand acres, and was the founder of what was afterwards known as "the McMahan Settlement". The first white child born in Chautauque County was John McHenry in 1802. His father, Edward McHenry, was the next settler of Westfield, after Col McMahan. In 1803 McHenry was drowned in attempting to make a trip from Chautauque Creek to Erie, in a small boat, for provisions.

In 1845 the county contained a population of 46,548, and in 1844 it produced 268,261 bushels of wheat, 313,128 of corn, 448,835 of oats, 6,816,869 of potatoes. It then contained 66,885 ~~meat~~ cattle, of which 25,024

were cows, from which 2,130,303 pounds of  
butter, and 974,474 pounds of cheese were  
made; 10,506 horses, 235,403 sheep and 61 law-  
yers

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

funeral

in our regard see

of

include you

Summit Almanac demons

Patric Campbell out commenced work 1814 settled store acct 1815 just before Plumb 1816  
1814-1815 work on mill in August 1814. First in house with 13 cows.

Eliaser Daniels acct at Pond commenced May 27 1814. Tarpid highway work 1814  
Acct work on mill in August 1814 at school & mill by Shover March 1814 \$2 cash  
nails, glue & charge for house July 1814.

Academy charged nails &c for in July, August, & Sept 1815  
1815

Store in Jonestown fall 1813 Spring 1814 work on store by P Palmeter & William Debus. Glue, nails, charge  
to J & M P. Work by Forbes April 1814.

John Barge Tarmey built 1814 in operation Spring 1815 & Rice came in as partner.  
1814 Applied in 1816 for 3 lots & 2 days road lay. In 1818 <sup>was</sup> Rice & Keam

Wm. Clark credit work

James Berry came about same time as Barges built house in fall 1814 occupied Spring 1815  
1814 seed in 1816

Jesse Smith first acct J & M P July 1814.

Nicholas Dolloff J P charged by him 4 m. single nails &c for house & P Palmeter work  
all in 1815 I suppose Spring lot, Burtwick. Then P Palmeter  
his acct to J & M P first July 7 1814. Dolloff doing work & one before  
commenced sewing

Jacob Fenton making large acct with J & M P Jonestown build material &c 1814  
1814 - sold 50 barrels whiskey a year large & small meat.

John Keam from Meadville wife Bradley Applied 1817 moved in 1816. A chieftain Capt  
in d in long ch Jonestown April 10 1818 see ch records

Mill dam &c some charge J & M P to J P indicate mills completed or perhaps done till 1814.

Grist mill J P is charged with money to lend for a man to work on mill stones  
March 6 1813. Hand saw mill started at Logville Aug 1 1814 \$3. Same date  
charge for bolt cloth. Grist found at upper dam but not raised & moved to lower dam

Oliver Higley come to his land near Jonestown 1815. Ohio 1834 Aleni 1839  
and died May 6 1846

Samuel Sinclair commd on his land Sinclairville March 1810 family Sept 1810

Pennsylvania Settlers Hugh & John Marsh 1797 Russell & McKee 1797 Brown 1800  
near Lima Fees

Kinnady's mills 1805

Work & R Mills 1808

Horace Allen & wife & child Aloni 1815 went to Sewing & bought harness April 1815  
of Mrs Forbes & sold same house to the commd addition to Capt. then Mrs Forbes  
fall of 1815.

Capt W. Marten says he worked some weeks on first dam - Grist mill  
not raised at first dam but at the 2<sup>d</sup> dam

Water Dam damages paid J & M P July 6 1812 \$23.50 Rowless Capt \$8 May 1812

Paid by J & M P  
at their store

J & M P  
July 1812  
Paid to Piers on \$42. Annual line 10¢  
Also on 13 Oct 1812 \$30. May 1814.

Alex. McArthur \$50 Dec 13 1813

what paid in  
the mill credit  
in 1812 & 13

James Prindigast by J. Dell P. cash Nov cont 1812 \$116

Oct 23 1814 \$47<sup>32</sup> by J. Dell P. pay for land. Nov 1 1814 did work 158<sup>5</sup> Albany  
Mill saw some date all were bought at Albany Aug. 23 1814.  
Crow bar for sawmill Dec 1814 \$575. August 1813 transferred mill stones  
Stone for first mill. April 2 1814 \$12. To him of Grist mill bar Aug 1814  
not taxed in Perfect roll until 1811 & then include Kentone land

Geo. W. Fenton, Antler 1806 Curwong 1810 - John Athew 1808.  
William Wilson called 1806

Edward Wort mill 1808

Uriah Butley & Amariah Carrier 1810

McGonagle from Hurick & broods droppers from work Sept. 1811 for store  
Mayville

Noratio Dix lived on his land near chases & did work in Jonestown  
but did not move until after Cotton factory raised  
First ball at Dix & Smith Allen house Jan 1. 1816 says M. Shewin  
Fonicley new near chases until <sup>1815</sup>

Nathan Medes got money for article for of 1813

Cotton Factory. Race dug in 1816 partly. Furne Dix & Keys 1816

Thomas Harvey came in 1815 moved family 1816

William Hall came to Carroll 1815 To Allen house books for 1816  
In 1815 taxed Road work Solomon for date and letter

Royal Keys came out in 1816 come in with wife Meren 1817

Israel Knight sent credit for work Meren 1815

Abelton Shewin

Cotton Factory sold at Sheriff Sale 30<sup>th</sup> Sept 1817 see  
Jonestown book built in 1816.

Prices Paid in 1812-12 Yoke of oxen P \$66. Oats 37<sup>1</sup> - Salt \$10<sup>00</sup> James work 8/1 of  
corn 4/- chuse 1/- wheat 8/- Sythes 14/- Shards tea 7/6 Shirts 6/- Whiskey 7/- Gull 1.  
Honey 15. Unison 4/- Sugar 15<sup>00</sup> Salt 10/-

Butter 14 cts May 1814.

Pauper James Prudgost for 1811 \$44.

Transportation Sept 1814 Pringing 1645 = goods from Albany 6¢/per hundred  
July to Nov 1811 transportation <sup>from</sup> Albany mill iron, soles, boards, Albany to Utica 6¢/per hundred.  
Truss to Mayville for 48 cts May 1814 \$6.

Doct Sartwell at Mayville Oct 24 1814 by Madam charge for goods

For jail Jail by Master P & E Merrell Nov 1814 Stock Lock \$5. Paid \$125  
24/3 = Iron by Rice (black st) 15 cts

January George Martin 4 1/2 casks oil Nov 22 1814 3 Bagall \$12  
see Mr Martin's testimony then in operation - Capt Wm Martin Early  
from Martin & sons to 12 Sept 1811  
Sugar Kettle 51" top in drained Sep for 100. Dec 1814

Boards sold at Pottsg <sup>sup</sup> by Eph Merwin & body John Prudgost 120 cts at \$12 1/2

Abraham Staples June in 1813 toothless soft help's iron first bones  
from the mill when

James Bemis born in town 1800, to Ellery 1806

Jonathan Let Dewitt born in 1800.

Elisha Wing Paid by J & J Polowie due him \$14 May 25 1814

Tothrops Parvlee & family to Jamaica July 1816 sleep good in caps new  
house in about 2 months sold goods to H caps for his Deftville property  
mills lands to moved family to mills 2 April 1816. Has sold the property  
to Samuel Budding & Major Prudgost in July but remained with family to Nov  
moved to Wornie & business there till death in 1815

Palmer sag best Forbes millwrights -

Phineas Palmer came to Fortan June 13 1813 single gang mill turning best  
no 200 on the mill: first mill for 1000 lbs. Prudgost born Sept 14 June 1813.  
Saw Miller's Commission moving down fall 1812 for operation again  
in fall of 1813. New mill 1814. Order build houses. Forbes, Floriss, Dindly, planks Fortuit  
13' Stone ship 1814. In 1814 & 15. 1600 lbs 10 cts First blind by King's 700 lbs  
Madison the best dry 45 mts tavern, cap house, his own house

Early hands at work for Prudgost as found in books, names

Mr Clark, Forbes, Lemmons, Elisha Wing, John Merwin, Nathan Merwin, John Hunt  
Mr Simons, Clement Dooliff, Ed Howe



to Morrison

Ephraim Morrison Oct 1 1814 he run to Pitts 125 Mts had \$140  
\$120 Bds sold in Pettys by the Judicial P at 12 1/2 M. Oct 10 1814  
Mr. Blake went on these bonds. Mr. Phil Palmer  
Abram Per purchased his dyciform in march 1812 & worked for P

Henry Burrharts overland

1870  
Apr 16 Eliczer Daniels I visit him wife near Panama  
She is 85 years & his wife 84 years of age next February  
They moved from Bedford to Westfield and remained in Westfield  
about 3 or 4 months since then when Buffalo buried  
Moved to Jonestown February after Buffalo buried - had 3  
children lived with Per until she

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Early matters of  
James Taylor  
Francis Taylor

part

Judge Prindergast laid his first lots in 1814-15  
E J Fools " " " " " 1823

Some years later Gen Horace Allen, and also Chandler and Windsor laid out lots on lands that I had sold them by the acre - I originally owned here about 300 acres

Still later Messrs Baker laid out lots on lands they had purchased of Judge Prindergast.

Each proprietor laid out lots agreeable to his own views and independent of others

Each proprietor named his own street & by common consent until recently they have all remained as named by the proprietors

Some years since a non resident came <sup>here</sup> as a speculator & got up <sup>published</sup> a lithographic and so far as my plots of lots are concerned the new map is very incorrect and calculated to mislead those who refer to it relative to the lots ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> my maps

In that lithograph incorrect map, he without any authority, as I believe, changed Center Street to Bridge Street & I have never adopted the new name in dividing lots.

I know of no other changes of names of streets until recently and I now find many changes of names have been made by some one but in whose authority I am not informed.

Some of the changes are perhaps for the best - I think not all. The first street I laid out has had my name on the maps for more than 40 years & all the lots on it have been divided & bounded by that street, by the name I gave it about 44 years since

Chandler Street is near the course of 2<sup>d</sup> Street as surveyed by Prindergast the 1<sup>st</sup> Street but I desire to retain the name of Chandler Street on our maps

Five prospectors  
laid out lots &c  
in Jamestown NY

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

To the Judges of the Court of Common Pleas of  
 the County of Chautauque & The the undersigned  
 inhabitants of the towns of Ogden Eltington  
 & Chautauque wishing to give you our views respecting  
 the roads running ~~eastwardly~~ <sup>eastwardly</sup> from Ameliasville  
 to Clear-creek the town line road is a very hilly road  
 and is much inferior to the new road running down  
 the ~~west~~ <sup>west</sup> branch valley near the west branch of Clearcreek  
 there is still a middle road running between  
 the town line road and chully road which we believe  
 to be entirely useless to the public

Presence then for witnesses  
 Henry Pomeroy  
 Henry Pomeroy  
 Henry Pomeroy

Warren Page  
 Seth Spaker  
 Henry Redden

Robert Clinton  
 Henry Altman  
 Calvin Little  
 J. B. Baker  
 J. I. Beardsley  
 Levi W. Churchill  
 Francis H. Knapp  
 Amos Norton  
 John Woodward  
 Ben. Pomeroy  
 George Anderson  
 Elisha Beardsley  
 Dudley Holcomb  
 Nathan Billing  
 Arthur Cox

Wm. M. Wagoner  
 Abner Bates  
 Wm. Bates  
 Horace Wheeler  
 Wm. L. Hancock  
 Stephen Brown  
 Peter Ingersoll  
 Elliott Musrow  
 J. J. Hall  
 Robert Barclay  
 Ebenezer Freeman  
 Lucius Baker  
 Jacob Tuder  
 James Briggs  
 Seth Spaker Jr  
 Samuel Stewart

Thomas H. Hurler

George Adams  
 Brownell Lake

George Anderson  
Elisha Beardsley  
Dudley Hotchkiss  
Nathan Pillsbury  
Arthur Coe

Juricus Baker  
Local Tades  
James Briggs  
Seth Baker Jr  
Small & Merritt

Thomas H. Hurler

George Adams  
Drewell Lake

J. L. Brewer  
Emek Smith  
Walter Bonney  
Daniel Williams

Robert Page  
Bigby Page  
George Matthews  
Bering Lumber

Edw. Norris  
Joseph B. Nash

Iron gates

Isaiah Apple  
John Stefford  
Henry Streater  
Amos Northon  
Nathaniel Fuller  
Thomas ...  
John ...

Albert Lohme  
Samuel Babcock  
Lewis Lohme  
Cassie Putnam  
D. C. Spear  
Simon Lawrence  
Mose Sleeper  
David Penhallow  
Alonso A. Swan  
Lewis Rice

Herman Camp

Nathaniel Fuller  
t. s. Brown  
Thomas [unclear]  
John [unclear]

Simon Lawrence  
Moses Sleeper  
James Penhallow  
Alonzo A. Swan  
Lewis Rice

Abner W. Camp  
Jonathan Hayes

~~Herman Camp~~  
~~Samuel [unclear]~~  
Sam Hurley  
Marshall [unclear]  
Thomas [unclear]  
Chas. J. Bridges  
Chester Cole  
James Cobb  
J. W. Elliott  
R. Shurtliff

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, N.Y. 12012

Pandora Scott  
Melzer Hunt  
James Buckley Jr  
J. A. Thompson  
W. Buckley  
W. B. [unclear]  
John M. Cullough  
John Moor  
George Wade  
Joseph Benson  
William Bliss  
John Cassin  
John Willist  
Quinto Pratt

Amasa Dabrymp  
John [unclear]  
Samuel C. Parker  
John M. Brunson  
George W. [unclear]  
John P. [unclear]  
Eros Carpenter  
Mingus [unclear]

Papers relating  
to a road appeal  
in the town of Gerry  
Numerous signatures

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD NY 2012

*[Faint, illegible handwritten signatures and text]*